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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the final results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March

2021 (the “Current Year”).

As of 31 March 2021, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HK$3,630 million, and the loss attributable to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) for the Current Year was approximately
HK$105.2 million, which is decreased by approximately HK$114.6 million
compare to that of the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Last
Year”).

In the Current Year, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses
of property investment, property development, hotel operations,
financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

This year is a year full of challenges. The Sino-US trade tensions have
been complicated and capricious since the beginning from the mid-2018,
but China and the United States finally signed the first phase of the trade
agreements in January 2020, which was originally expected to have positive
impact on the global economy. However, a coronavirus disease with the
greatest fallout in a recent century broke out. It has an unprecedented
infectiosity and it had spread to every corner of the world in just two to
three months, including the largest economies such as the United States,
China, Europe and Japan. To fight against the outbreak, the strictest
isolation measures have been introduced all over the world, including
the lockdown and closure measures, which up to this date, have not been
entirely lifted. The daily activities of the people have been forced to suspend,
and more importantly, the production activities have been halted, which has
seriously affected the global economy. So far, the priority of the governments
around the world is still to combat the outbreak. Although the central banks
of various countries have introduced massive bailout measures to boost the
weak economy, it is believed that the global economy can only gradually

recover after the outbreak is contained and demand rises.
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Chairman’s Report (Continued)
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There are three investment properties of the Group. H 8 K/E in Yingkou
and Jinggangshan hotel in Jiangxi, had been leased out during the year. 2
B ZE %5 in Zhongshan was vacant since the cancellation of lease agreement

with the lessee in September 2020.

The Group’s property development project Golden Beach No. 1 project (the
“Golden Beach No. 1 Project”) located in Weihai, Shandong, the PRC is
originally expected to be completed in full in the fourth quarter of 2020.
However, affected by the outbreak of coronavirus, the construction progress
was substantially delayed. The current expected completion time for the
project will be delayed to the second half year of 2022. The Golden Beach
No. 1 Project will have a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of
the gross floor area with over 1,600 apartment suites and 360 car parking
spaces. Among which, approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross

floor area will be available for sale as serviced apartments.

According to a report issued by the independent valuer engaged by the
Group, based on (among other things) the current property price levels in
Weihai, the aggregate market value of the whole project including serviced
apartments, hotel and related retail premises and car-parking spaces is
expected to be approximately RMB2.11 billion assuming they have been
completed at the current stage. The Group believes that the Weihai property
will become a new source of income and generate stable cash flow for the

Group.
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In last year, the Group launched a new business, namely the comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services. According to the China
National Committee on Aging, the national elderly population aged 65
or above will increase to 14% of population, changing as an aged society.
The state has proposed to promote the construction of “Healthy China”
in the “13th Five-Year Plan” in 2015, and upgraded the construction of
“Healthy China” as a national strategy. In 2016, the State Council set
a clear goal for “Healthy China 2030” that, the total scale of the health
service industry should reach RMBI16 trillion by 2030. The report of the
19th National Congress of the CPC in 2017 also proposed “accelerating the
cause and the industry development of the aging sector”. With the steady
and rapid development of the domestic economy and the improvement of
people’s living standards, the demand for health services has risen swiftly.
The industry scale will quadruple from RMB3.8 trillion in 2015 to RMB16
trillion in 2030. The health care industry has huge development potential
and will usher in an unprecedented opportunity for development. China
will become the largest market for the global health industry. In the context
of the “Healthy China” national strategy, the health industry has become
an important engine of economic growth under the new norms. The Group
regards the comprehensive healthcare sector as one of its major targets for
future development. In the initial stage, the Group first provided planning,
research, establishment, staff training and other preliminary works as well as
the post-establishment management services to operators who are interested
in the comprehensive healthcare business. In the future, the Group may
proactively identify potential existing property projects to modify them
into high-end healthcare projects. It is also possible to develop high-
end healthcare projects through land development by ourselves. With the
cooperation of property owners and the capital operation of insurers and
financial institutions, we will jointly operate high-end healthcare projects. I
believe that the comprehensive healthcare business will provide the Group

with another sustainable business development opportunity.
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Chairman’s Report (continued)

FEHRSTE®

The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation
for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality and

financial resources.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
I also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and

employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the past years.

SUN Yu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Introduction

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the
business of property investment, property development, hotel operations,
financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the PRC.

Property investment

The Group’s current investments in investment properties consist of the

following wholly-owned properties:

o The commercial building known as B KJE at Kunlun Main Street
West, Bayuquan District, Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC
(the “Yingkou Property”);

*  The hotel complex at No. 1 Lan Hua Ping Road, Ciping Town,
Jinggangshan city, Jiangxi province, the PRC (the “Jinggangshan
Property”); and

o The residential and commercial complex known as ZPLZEE ar No.
69 Zhongshan Third Road, East District, Zhongshan city, Guangdong
province, the PRC (the “Zhongshan Property”).

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in the project located at
Golden Beach No. 1, Golden Beach Garden, south of Bei Huan Hai Road
and east of Ren Tai Garden, Gao District, Weihai city, Shandong province,
the PRC (the “Weihai Property”) currently under development and to be
sold by the Group. The Weihai Property is wholly-owned by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIEE st R @

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investment in hotel operations consist of the hotel

development in the Weihai Property.

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in
the Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned hotel group as
hotel manager under the management agreement between the Group and the

said hotel group. The hotel is currently under construction.

Financial consultancy service

Due to the stagnant economic conditions in the PRC, the Group’s business
of providing financial consultancy services to property developers in the

PRC for financing recorded no revenue in the Current Year.

Comprehensive healthcare planning and management services

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services was established in Last Year. Currently, this business segment
includes mainly provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services to healthcare business operators, including preliminary
planning, research, establishment, staff training, post-establishment

operation and management.

A. The Group’s Property Investment

(i)  The Yingkou Property

The Yingkou Property is a 16-storey commercial building situated
in Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC. The gross floor area
of the Yingkou Property is approximately 10,740 square metres,
and is owned by FREYZEE (B 1) WEEBAR AR (‘U
Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management Corporation Limited*) (the

“Yingkou Subsidiary”).
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(ii)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In September 2010, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a bank as lessee in relation to the lease of
the second to fourth floors, as well as part of the ground floor
area, of the Yingkou Property. The lease was for ten years, with an
annual rental of RMB1.68 million for the first five years and an

annual rental of RMB1.764 million for the remaining five years.

In November 2013, the Yingkou Subsidiary as lessor entered into
a lease agreement with a local lessee in relation to the lease of the
fifth to sixteenth floors, as well as part of the ground floor area, of
the Yingkou Property. The lease was for nine years, with an initial
annual rental of RMB1.2 million for the first three years of the
lease. The annual rental shall increase by 6% after the expiration
of each three year period after the commencement date of the
lease. As the lease of the second to fourth floors, as well as part of
the ground floor area of the Yingkou Property terminated in April
2021, the Group entered into a supplemental lease agreement
with the current local lessee to occupy the remaining floor area
at a discounted annual rental of RMBO0.7 million till April 2022.
And a new ten-year rental agreement is also signed with the
current local lessee starting from May 2022 to April 2032 with an

annual rental of RMB2 million.

The Group considers that the operations of the Yingkou Property
has entered a stable stage. The Group does not expect any
material change to the operation of the Yingkou Property for the

duration of the current leases until 2032.

The Jinggangshan Property

The Jinggangshan Property is a hotel complex situated in
Jinggangshan city, Jiangxi province, the PRC. The hotel complex

has a gross floor area of approximately 9,600 square metres.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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In June 2017, the Group entered into a lease agreement over
the Jinggangshan Property with a local lessee for a period of ten
years (which commenced on 8 December 2017, after the expiry
of a rent-free period of six months) until 7 December 2027.
The annual rental for each of the first three years was RMB1.8
million and the annual rental for each of the next three years
was RMB1.9 million. Subsequently the annual rental for each of
the following three years was RMB2.0 million, while the annual
rental for the last year was RMB2.1 million. Under the terms of
the lease agreement, the local lessee shall operate hotel businesses
in the hotel complex. The local lessee undertook to renovate
and maintain the hotel complex, and to ensure that the post-
renovation complementary facilities achieve 3-Star or above in
accordance with relevant PRC standards. The lessee undertook
to pay not less than RMB10 million in renovation expenditures,
and the Group shall subsequently reimburse the renovation

expenditures of up to RMB10 million over the term of the lease.

The renovation work arranged by the local lessee has been
completed, and the hotel complex operated by the tenant has
commenced its operations. Accordingly, the Group’s business
operations of the Jinggangshan Property have also entered a stable
stage. The Group does not expect any material change to the
operation of the Jinggangshan Property for the duration of the

current lease until 2027.

The Group believes this business model will not only help the
Group generate stable rental income to the Group, but also
improve the cash flow of the Group by spreading the renovation

expenses borne by the Group over the term of the lease.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(iii) The Zhongshan Property

The Zhongshan Property is a multi-purpose complex comprising
retail floors on the lower levels with commercial and residential
floors on the upper levels. In 2015, the Group acquired the
Zhongshan Property for investment purposes. Upon the
completion of acquisition, the Group was of the view that the
commercial and residential floors are suitable for economy hotels
and service apartments operations, while the retail floors are

suitable for leasing to tenants for retail and catering businesses.

The Group’s investment in Property Development

The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with
a total gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres, of
which the entire area were originally intended for hotel use. The
Group’s management observed that Weihai has become an increasingly
popular destination for the retired population in recent years which,
coupled with the rapid growth of the tourism sector, has resulted in a
consistent influx of migrants and an increased demand for properties.
The Group’s management considered such development in Weihai will
continue to benefit its hotel industry and the local property market. In
light of the above, the Group’s management resolved in the financial
year of 2017/18 that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross
floor area of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and utilized as

serviced apartments.

B R EEARAT] (Weihai Guosheng Runhe Property
Development Co. Ltd.*) (“Weihai Runhe”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Commodity Housing Pre-sale
Permit in the third quarter of 2018, after which pre-sale of the serviced

apartments of Weihai Property started.
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As at the date of this report, the total pre-sales by Weihai Runhe
amounted to approximately RMB207 million, and the total saleable
area pre-sold is approximately 17,000 square metres. The relevant pre-
sale amounts are expected to be recognised as revenue in the financial
year of 2022/23, as the construction and renovation works of the

serviced apartment units are currently expected to be completed in the

second half of 2022.

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the preliminary initial costs (excluding the land
costs which was paid by the Group through acquisition of the offshore
holding company of the PRC company for development of the Weihai
Property) for development of the Weihai Property will exceed RMB1
billion. Part of the Group’s plan to finance the development of the
Weihai Property is pre-sale of the serviced apartment units as disclosed

above.

In November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement (the “Asia Alliance Asset Loan”) wich 55 i
EEEMAMRAE (AFCA AMC Co., Lid.®), through Harbin Bank
Tianjin Branch, pursuant to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan
facility of RMB660 million (equivalent to approximately HK$780.6
million) for a term of 3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum.
The final drawdown amount was RMB500 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$591.4 million) with the remaining undrawn facility
amount lapsed. The Group is currently under negotiation with Harbin
Bank regarding the restructure of the repayment schedule as the

construction progress was affected by the outbreak of COVID-19.

The Management considered that the Weihai Property would be
sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated from pre-
sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facilities such as the facilities
mentioned above: (iii) financing of the development costs by
contractor for obtaining interest return from the Group; and (iv) other
capital arrangements as may be entered into by the Group from time to

time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group’s Hotel Operations

The Weihai Property

Among the three buildings of the Weihai Property, the highest building
of which would partially be built into a hotel. Affected by the outbreak
of COVID-19, the construction progress was severely hindered. The
estimated completion time will be postponed from 2021 to the second
half of 2022. The main building of the Weihai Property is expected
to stand approximately at 149.8 metres height, making it a landmark
along the Golden Beach in Weihai. It is also expected to be the highest
building in Weihai.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property in
September 2017, it included a management agreement with a world-
renowned hotel group as hotel manager. Under the management
agreement, the hotel manager will provide consultancy, design
and monitoring services in the course of the development of the
hotel floors, and manage the operations of the hotel premises upon
completion. The hotel is expected to be 5-star international standard

and target high-end business and leisure travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to be
in the second half of 2022), the hotel is expected to provide about 200

luxury suites and rooms.
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D. The Group’s Financial Consultancy Service

16

Due to the sustained slowdown in the economy of the PRC, the
provision of financial consultancy services business to the real estate
developers in need of financing, which was the main service provided
by the Group under this segment in the past, was also greatly affected
in the Current Year and thus did not record any revenue for the
Current Year. However, the Group believes that the PRC market
potential is still huge and it may adjust its operating model in future
to not only focus on providing financial consultancy services to real
estate developers, but also build more financing platforms for other
companies with a view to capturing market opportunities and increased

income therefrom.

The Group’s Comprehensive Healthcare Planning and
Management Services

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services was established in Last Year. The Group
successfully engaged in attracting professional teams with extensive
experience in these sectors and has comprehensive project resources
with customer network. This business segment has already contributed
revenue to the Group since Last Year. This business is aiming to
operate with the goal of building the brand of “Grandlife Healthcare
Group”. Currently, this segment services mainly focus on provision
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services such
as preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff training and
post-establishment operation and management to healthcare business

operators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Performance Indicators
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U4 955 Il i
HERBUER

For the year ended 31 March
BE=H =1+ —HILEE

2021 2020

—F_ A CECZE

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# L T

Revenue & 13,866 14,914
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company RNTIHEA NIEAG

(5 18) i (105,243) 9,379

(Losses)/earnings per share (HK cents) B (EH8) /& Al Gl (3.07) 0.27

As at 31 March
R=A=+—H

2021 2020

e

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T# T TH#IT

Gross assets R 3,632,759 3,275,774

Net assets attributable to owners of the Company AN A A N A 5 1,952,782 1,901,146

Cash and bank balances W& BARAT 7K 14,002 13,692

Borrowings ERES 642,360 598,503
Net borrowings/net assets attributable to owners of RNTIHEA N EAG

the Company Tl 81 E E 32.2% 30.8%

Revenue W %

Revenue amounted to approximately HK$13.9 million for the Current Year, AR R A 41398 B # 0 L4
representing an decrease of approximately HK$1 million or approximately FERIEI14.9 8 B # T/ 491 8 B Tei 4
6.7% as compared to that of approximately HK$14.9 million for the Last 6.7% © 4F PN Y 28 4 F5 BS 2 T ER A BT e it 8
Year. The revenue remained stable during the year due to the outbreak of V& P EECE B IS B AR T L o

COVID-19 which slow down the business activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$8.4 million
for the Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$2.7
million or approximately 24.3% as compared to that of approximately
HK$11.1 million for the Last Year. The decrease in other operating expense
was mainly as a result of the Group’s continuing effort on controlling

expenditures.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$0.6 million for the
Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.5 million or
approximately 45.5% as compared to that of approximately HK$1.1 million
for the Last Year. The significant decrease in finance costs was mainly
attributable to the capitalization of finance costs in relation to the bonds by

the Group during current year.

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

For the Current Year, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$105.2 million (Last Year profit:
approximately HK$9.4 million).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Current Year, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included

income generated from business operations and advances from controlling

shareholders.

The Group expects that income generated from business operations and
borrowings will continue to be the main sources of funds in the coming year.
Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management,
improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and stringently control
the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic investors, in order to

provide other sources of funding for the expansion of projects and business

development.
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$14.0 million as compared to the bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$13.7 million as at 31 March 2020.

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately HK$91.1
million as at 31 March 2021, against approximately HK$226.5 million as
at 31 March 2020. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 1.1x as at 31 March 2021 as compared

with approximately 1.2x as at 31 March 2020.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net
debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was
approximately 32.2% (31 March 2020: 30.8%). Net debt comprises total

borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank balances.

BONDS ISSUED

There are no bonds issued during current year. As at 31 March 2021, the
total outstanding amount of the bonds issued was HK$51,000,000 (31
March 2020: HK$55,500,000).

On 30 April 2021, a winding-up petition against the Company was filed by
a bondholder in respect of bond with the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$9,981,000 (comprising the principal amount of the bond, and interest
accrued from such outstanding principal amount), the aforesaid amount
together with remaining bonds in the principal amount of HK$40,500,000
were transferred to an independent third party on 14 May 2021 (the
“Assignee”), the winding-up petition will be withdrawn on 7 July 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for the Current Year included expenditure
on fixed assets and investment properties of approximately HK$77.8 million
(Last Year: approximately HK$42.1 million) and approximately HK$Nil
(Last Year: approximately HK$1.5 million) respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2020: Nil); and

(b) the Group has capital expenditure for hotel properties contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
the amount of approximately HK$124.9 million (31 March 2020:
HK$121.1 million) in respect of the construction of the hotel

properties.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s interests in the Weihai
Property, and the equity interests in a PRC subsidiary which control the
Weihai Property were pledged to an independent third party as security for
borrowings with outstanding amount of RMB500.0 million (equivalent
to: approximately HK$591.4 million (31 March 2021); approximately
HK$546.0 million (31 March 2020)).

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Company is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is mainly responsible
for corporate financing and administration, and engaged in investment
holding. The business of the Company’s subsidiaries primarily involves
operations and investments in the PRC, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Renminbi. If necessary, the Group will consider using
forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposures. The
main foreign exchange exposure is from Renminbi; however as both revenue
and expenditure of the Group’s business are dominated in Renminbi, the
Directors believe that the Group does not have significant foreign exchange

exposure.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies by the Group for the Current Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 March 2020: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 50 employees (31 March
2020: 55 employees), including executive Directors. The remuneration and
staff cost for the Current Year were approximately HK$13.7 million (Last
Year: approximately HK$13.8 million). The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for the executive Directors and senior management were
determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of
the Company while those for other employees were reviewed and approved
by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and executive Directors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The current principal business of the Group includes property investment,
property development, hotel operations, provision of financial consultancy
service and provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and

management services in the PRC.

For the property investment, 58 KJ& in Yingkou and Jinggangshan hotel
in Jiangxi have all been leased with original lease term for over 10 years,
which guaranteed its long-term rental income with stable annual cash inflow

for the Group.

For the property development, pre-sale of the apartment units of the Golden
Beach No. 1 Project phase I located in Weihai, Shandong province, the key
project of the Group, has commenced in the third quarter of 2018. The
project was expected to be completed and delivered in the fourth quarter of
2021. However, affected by the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction
progress was delayed and the latest estimated completion time will second
half of 2022. The Group will then be able to recognise sales revenue from

the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase I in the financial year of 2022/23.

For the hotel operations, the hotel of the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase
I located in Weihai, Shandong province is under construction. Also affected
by the outbreak of COVID-19, the hotel is expected to be completed and
start operating in 2022. The hotel of the Golden Beach No. 1 Project
phase I will be a new landmark and being the highest building of Weihai
city, Shandong province. The hotel will be managed by a world-renowned
hotel management company, making it the first international five-star hotel

of the city.

Suffering from the global weak economy, the financial consultancy service
business remained dormant and management will monitor the market

situation to adjust its business direction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The business segment of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services business is progressing steadily since its establishment
in Last Year. Currently, the comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services business includes provision of services to healthcare
business operators, including preliminary planning, research, establishment,
staff training and post-establishment operation and management. The
Group has professional teams with extensive experience in these sectors and
has comprehensive project resources and customer network. The Group
is under the development to cooperate with property owners to modify
property projects into high-end healthcare projects and combined with the
capital operation of insurance companies and financial institutions to jointly

operate healthcare projects.

The COVID-19 pandemic that broke out in early 2020 has seriously
affected the global economy. It has been more than a year since the
outbreak began. In the coming years, global economic recovery is very much
dependent upon the efficiency of rapid mass vaccination programs and

sustainable recovery policies rolled out by the respective governments.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main businesses of the Group include property investment, property
development, hotel operations, financial consultancy service and
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services in the PRC.
Since substantial of the businesses of the Group are located in China, the
main risks and uncertainties of the Group have been closely related to the

demand, economic performance and political environment in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia in China in early 2020
severely affected the normal life in China with unprecedented measures
such as the nationwide lockdown and the closure of customs, the suspension
of production activities and markets and the prohibition of foreign entry.
During the epidemic, normal business transactions, factory production
activities and other activities were forced to suspend. The entire economic
circle and supply chain suffered heavy losses and demand was severely
weighed down. However, under the sturdy and effective control of the
Chinese government, the epidemic has gradually eased, and therefore, China
has recovered faster than the European countries and the United States,
taking the lead in the economic recovery. However, if the novel coronavirus
pneumonia epidemic relapses in the future or even becomes endemic which
will continue to affect the economic environment, the longer the duration,

the more it will affect the operations of the Group.

Since a large portion of the Group’s business resources are invested in
property investment and property development, China’s macro-control
policies on the real estate industry are also the main source of risks for
the Group. Based on the experience of the past ten years, the Chinese
government’s regulation of the domestic real estate industry highly
depends on the economic situation. When the economy is overheated, the
government will introduce regulatory policies such as restricting purchases
and prices, restricting project loans and restricting mortgages to curb an
overheated economy. On the other hand, in times when the economy
suffers, the government may relax the relevant policies again. The domestic
economy has been greatly damaged because of the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pneumonia. It is expected that the Chinese government will
launch many economic stimulus measures to save the economy, from which

the real estate industry is expected to benefit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

China has a wide range of taxes for the real estate industry, such as land
value-added tax, real estate tax, value-added tax, urban construction tax and
education surcharges and corporate income tax. The real estate industry is
far more taxed than other industries. Thus, changes in taxation policies will

have a significant impact on the profitability of the Group.

As the Group’s assets mainly located in China and denominated in RMB,
the changes in currency rate between RMB and HKD will have certain

impact to the Group.

In addition to the aforesaid risks and uncertainties, the Group’s analysis on
the credit risk and liquidity risk are detailed in the note 3.1 financial risk

management of the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Current Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws or regulations by
the Group that has a material adverse impact on the business and operations

of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. The Group’s
employee management focuses on recruiting and developing talents. Staff
performance is measured on a regular and structured basis to provide
employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure their alignment with the
Group’s corporate strategy. The Group also understands that maintaining
a good long-term relationship with business partners is one of its primary
objectives. Accordingly, the management has used its best endeavours to
maintain good communications, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. During the Current Year,
there was no material or significant dispute between the Group and its

customers, suppliers and business partners.
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Directors’ Biographies

EEM[{N

Executive Directors

Ms. HUNG Man, formerly known as Xiong Shu Min, (“Ms. HUNG”),
chief executive officer (“CEO”), Chairman of the Executive Committee
and (“Executive Committee”) Member of the Remuneration, Quality and
Nomination Committee (“RQNC”) of the Company

Aged 52, Ms. HUNG was appointed as an executive Director, the
Chairman, CEQ, chairman of the Executive Committee and member of the
RQNC on 28 March 2019. Ms. HUNG was appointed as the Chairman
during the period from 28 March 2019 to 15 March 2021. She invested in
securities and real estate in Hong Kong in the 1990s. In 2012, Ms. HUNG
acquired shares in Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC” and, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Crown Landmark Group”) and participated in
the operations and management of the Crown Landmark Group, which
eventually acquired a controlling equity interest in the Company in 2014.
Under her management, the Crown Landmark Group expanded its various
operations, and she accumulated years of experience in operating a business

conglomerate.

Ms. HUNG has substantial participation in non-profit and charitable
activities. She is currently serving as director of the Crown International
Foundation Limited, vice chairperson of the board of governors of the Hong
Kong Guangan Development and Promotion Association, and honorary
chairperson of the 14th term board of governors of the Hong Kong Alumni
Association of Huaqiao University. She was a director of each of the 38th
term and the 39th term board of directors, vice chairperson of the 40th and
41st term board of directors and is currently the vice chairperson of the

42nd term board of directors, of Yan Oi Tong.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. LI Yong Jun (“Mr. LI”), Vice Chairman of the Board and Member of
the Executive Committee

Aged 52, Mr. LI was appointed as an executive Director, vice Chairman of
the Board, and member of the Executive Committee on 3 May 2018. He
holds a Master of Business Administration in management from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business, and holds the qualification of senior
engineer in the PRC. Mr. LI has over 20 years’ experience in enterprise
strategic decision making and corporate management. He is the president
of Yong Xin Hua Holdings Group Co., Ltd. G ¥ HE#E & B A BR A 7))
together with its subsidiaries, the “YXHY Group”). The YXHY Group was
founded by Mr. LI in 2003 with its headquarters located in Beijing. The
YXHY Group’s major businesses cover industries real estate development,
cultural tourism investment, and internet big data services. Its business
scope covers cultural tourism real estate development, financial and real
estate investment, construction and operation of cultural experience parks,
investment in cultural and creative industries, internet big data services
and art and finance industry, etc. Under his leadership, the YXHY Group
expanded into a national diversified group. Mr. LI has been appointed
as a non-executive director of Renco Holdings Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2323) (“Renco”), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, on 30 August 2019. He has been further appointed as the
chairman of the board of directors of Renco since 6 April 2020.

Mr. LI is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition (of which
the Director-General of UNESCO is the Honorary President), the vice
chairman of the China Industry University Research Collaboration
Association, and the vice chairman of the China Intangible Cultural

Heritage Protection Association.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

EEHNT @

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (“Mr. LIU”), Vice Chairman of the Board and
Member of the Executive Committee

Aged 61, Mr. LIU was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company (a “NED”) on 27 May 2014 and also appointed as the vice
Chairman of the Board on 2 July 2014. He was re-designated as an executive
Director and member of the Executive Committee on 1 November 2015. He

obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Literature from Yunnan University

in China.

As an entrepreneur, Mr. LIU has many years of experience in commerce,
especially in real estate development in both residential and commercial
properties. He and his business partners have invested in and developed both

residential and commercial properties.

Mr. MENG Jin Long (“Mr. MENG”), Member of the Executive
Committee

Aged 36, Mr. MENG was appointed as a NED on 27 May 2014. He was
re-designated as an executive Director and member of each of the Executive
Committee and the RQNC on 19 September 2014. Mr. Meng was further
appointed as the Chairman and the chairman of the Executive Committee
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 27 March 2019. He was the CEO
during the period from 31 March 2015 to 6 October 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Jing Qiao University in

China.

Mr. MENG joined the Crown Landmark Group in May 2012. Before
joining the Crown Landmark Group, he was a sales manager at a real estate
investment company in Beijing. Mr. MENG assisted in land and property
development, shopping mall leasing and management and managed the sale

and lease of several real estate projects.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. SUN Yu (“Mr. SUN”), Chairman of the board
Aged 52, Mr. SUN was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company (a “NED”). He holds a master degree of finance and doctoral

degree of economics from the University of New South Wales.

Mr. Sun has more than 25 years working experiences in investment and
banking in several international financial institutions. He is familiar with
international financial business and international economic diplomacy. He
also has rich experience in investment banking. He has served as a credit
manager of ANZ Bank, a director of Australia United Finance Associates Co,
a managing director of Wealth Management of UBS Group, an executive
director of the World Cities Development Foundation of World Bank. He
is currently a vice-president of the Asia Development & Investment Bank
Limited and executive director of ADIB Holding Limited. Mr. Sun was an
executive director of Asia Investment Finance Group Limited (now known
as Amber Hill Financial Holdings Limited) (stock code: 33) for the period
from 18 December 2018 to 30 December 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. HE Dingding (“Mr. HE”), Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 44, Mr. HE was appointed as an independent Non-executive Director
(an “INED”) of the Company (an “INED”) and the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of
the RQNC on 20 May 2021. He graduated from Nanyang Technological
University, Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering in July
1999. Mr. He was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

EEHNT @

Mr. HE has more than 16 years of extensive working experiences in
capital markets, corporate finance, investment and finance, and corporate
management through during his employment in investment banks, advisory
firms and listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since 2005. Mr.
HE is currently an INED of Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1663)
and is appointed as a member of each of the nomination committee, the
remuneration committee and the audit committee of the company. Mr. HE
is also currently an INED of Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8275) and is
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee, a member of each of the

remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the company.

Mr. He had been the independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the nomination committee, and a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of China Kangda Food Company Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (with stock codes: 834 and P74 respectively),
between August 2012 and June 2015. Mr. He had been appointed as a non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of Perfect Group
International Holdings Limited (“Perfect Group”), a company whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
3326), between March 2017 and February 2018, and he was subsequently
appointed as the deputy chief executive officer of Perfect Group between

March 2018 and August 2018.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

Mr. REN Guo Hua (“Mr. REN”), Chairman of the RQNC and Member
of the Audit Committee

Aged 64, Mr. REN was appointed as an INED and the chairman of the
RQNC and a member of the Audit Committee on 27 May 2014. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in English and American literature from East

China Normal University.

Mr. REN is currently the senior advisor of StormHarbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited. He has many years of experience in financial investment
products. Mr. REN served in various global financial institutions and has
many years of experience in international banking and investment market.
He was a managing director of Greater China Origination in StormHarbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and the general manager of Sinolink
Financial Leasing Company Limited. Before that, Mr. REN was a managing
director and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the debt and
fixed income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong

Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.

Mr. CHEN Fang (“Mr. CHEN”), Member of the Audit Committee and
Member of the RQNC

Aged 62, Mr. CHEN was appointed as an INED and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and the RQNC on 27 May 2014. He obtained a
graduate degree in Technical Economy from Harbin Institute of Technology

in China.

Mr. CHEN is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc. He has many years of experience in corporate governance as well as
enterprise development and restructuring. Mr. CHEN has also established
a valuable network in the business communities. He was the Dean of
the Institute of IT and Social Development Research of the Chongging

Technology and Business University.
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Directors’ Biographies (continued)

EEHNT @

Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick (“Mr. WONG”), Member of the Audit
Committee and Member of the RQNC

Aged 65, Mr. WONG was appointed as an INED and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the RQNC on 3 March 2021. Mr. Wong is an
associate member of Chartered Institute of Bankers, United Kingdom (now
renamed as The London Institute of Banking & Finance), fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors since 1 April 2017 and member of
The Institute of Management Consultants Hong Kong since 1 August of the
same year and qualified as Certified Management Consultant. Mr. Wong
holds a Master’s degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University,
Australia and completed the Executive Diploma in Management Consulting

from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University on 12 October 2017.

Mr. WONG has over 40 years of working experience in banking, finance,
commodity trading and project development. He is currently an executive
director and chief operating officer and authorised representative of Daisho
Microline Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 567), an executive director of
FDG Kinetic Limited (Stock Code: 378) and a non-executive director and
authorised representative of Huscoke Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 704)
(“Huscoke”), the shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He
was an executive director of Huscoke between November 2016 and April
2018 and was re-designated as a non-executive director of Huscoke in April
2018. Mr. Wong was an executive director of Winto Group (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8238), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8238) between April 2019 and November 2019
and Titan Petrochemicals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1192) (“Titan
Petrochemicals”), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange between 2008 and 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents the corporate governance report of the Group for the

Current Year.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasise on a
quality Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of
information and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the
Group’s management are committed to continuously improving corporate
governance practices and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of

the Company.

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with a view to enhancing the management of the
Company as well as preserving the interest of its Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) save as

disclosed below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. On 16 March 2021 Mr. SUN Yu was appointed
the chairman of the Board. Following the appointment of Mr. Yu, Ms.
HUNG Man has ceased to be the chairman of the Board and she will
remain as an executive Director, the chairman of the executive committee
of the Company, a member of the remuneration, quality and nomination
committee of the Company and the chief executive office of the Company.
As the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Company are now assumed by Mr. SUN Yu and Ms. HUNG Man
separately, the Company has re-complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBT @

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of nine
Directors, being four executive Directors, one non-executive Directors and
four independent non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out
in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of this annual report. The
Company has also maintained on its website and on the Stock Exchange’s
website an updated list of the Directors identifying their role and function

and whether they are independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. LONG Tao resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 30
April 2021. Mr. SUN Yu was appointed as a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board on 16 March 2021. Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick
and Mr. HE Dingding were appointed as an independent non-executive
Directors on 3 March 2021 and 20 May 2021 respectively. Mr. SUN Yu
was appointed for a term of three years and shall be renewed automatically
for consecutive periods of one year each subject to termination by either
party with one month’s written notice. Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick
was appointed for a term of one year and shall be renewed automatically
for consecutive periods of one year each subject to termination by either
party with one month’s written notice. Mr. HE Dingding was appointed
for a term of three years. The appointment of non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors shall be subject to retirement at the
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting, and shall also be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meetings of the
Company since his last re-election pursuant to articles of association of the

Company.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 26 to 32 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.

The Board currently comprises four independent non-executive Directors
and one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director, pursuant to the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, has confirmed he had
been independent of the Company throughout the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this report, and the Company also considers
that they have been independent. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) between each Director (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director) and the other members of the Board
or the senior management and between the chairman of the Board and the

chief executive officer of the Company.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the
Current Year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
All Directors have been required to provide the Company their records of

training received for the Current Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board diversity policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition

from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.

Directors’ nomination and appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company

and be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for

all Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Current Year are set out in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice
of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice
will be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and available for
inspection by the Directors. Directors have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management, and full and unrestricted access to
relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate information in
such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and discharge their duties and responsibilities. The Board ensures
that Directors are provided with sufficient resources in the furtherance of
their duties as Board/committee members, including access to independent

professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.
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During the Current Year, 10 Board meetings were held and the attendance

record is set out below:

Directors

HE

Mr. SUN Yu! e

Ms. HUNG Man ARt
M. LI Yong Jun POKE S
Mr. LIU Hong Shen BIAL RS
Mr. MENG Jin Long wBHESE
Mr. LONG Tao? R T Je Ak
Mr. REN Guo Hua AR A
Mr. CHEN Fang R e
Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick? e

! appointed on 16 March 2021

o

resigned on 30 April 2021
3 appointed on 3 March 2021

* The 2020 AGM held on 7 September 2020.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire
by rotation at least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each
Director shall retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply

with the code provisions of the CG Code.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-

election by Shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her

appointment.
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Any re-election of an independent non-executive Director who has served
the Board for more than nine years, should be subject to a separate

resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and

the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the independent non-executive Directors give the
Board and the Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their
skills, expertise and various backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They make positive contributions to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,

constructive and informed comments.

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The independent non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate

communications that disclose the names of Directors.

Matters reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the
Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the Group’s

managcmcnt.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

The Group’s management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to

it from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Ms.
HUNG Man and the members are Mr. LI Yong Jun, Mr. LIU Hong Shen
and Mr. MENG Jin Long.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake the review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. During the Current
Year and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick
has been appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 3 March 2021;
Mr. LONG Tao ceased to be the chairman of the Audit Committee on 1
May 2021; and Mr. HE Dinging has been appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee on 20 May 2021. As at the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. HE Dingding and the members are Mr.
REN Guo Hua, Mr. CHEN Fang and Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee
arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

1)

2)

(3)

4)

5)

(6)

@)

®)

©)]

to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the Group’s management to
ensure that the Group’s management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors and the

Independent Auditors;

to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and

monitor its effectiveness;
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(10) to review the Independent Auditor’'s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Group’s management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

the Group’s management’s response; and

(11) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Current Year and the

attendance record is set out below:

Directors

o

Mr. LONG Tao! AER I
Mr. REN Guo Hua Bl 2 5 4
Mr. CHEN Fang [ Emas
Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick? w0 HESE AR

! resigned on 30 April 2021

2 appointed on 3 March 2021

The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Current
Year included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2020
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Current Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of BDO

Limited (“BDO”) as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

RQNC

The RQNC comprises all the independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. During the Current Year and up to the date of
this annual report, Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick has been appointed as
a member of the RQNC on 3 March 2021; Mr. LONG Tao ceased to be
a member of the RQNC on 1 May 2021; and Mr. HE Dinging has been
appointed as a member of the RQNC on 20 May 2021. As at the date of
this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua and the
members are Ms. HUNG Man, Mr. CHEN Fang, Mr. WONG Siu Hung
Patrick and Mr. HE Dingding.

The terms of reference of the RQNC were revised on 1 January 2019 which
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Its principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based
remuneration policy. The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, and is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of non-executive Directors.
No Director or any of his associates will be involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the executive Directors, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members, determining the policy for the nomination of the Directors,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.
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The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.
The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its

duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.
During the Current Year, the RQNC held 3 meetings and the attendance

record is set out below:

Directors

Y

Mr. REN Guo Hua AN e
Ms. HUNG Man AR+
Mr. LONG Tao' HE TR S
Mr. CHEN Fang BRTRC e A
Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick? e

! resigned on 30 April 2021

2 appointed on 3 March 2021

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Current Year
included review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

the assessment of the independence of INEDs.
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Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments of the RIBEHEEIBTFH ZFRIECB.1.5 A%
members of the senior management of the Group by bands is set out below: 196 v A A B RS ) T < e AEL I OB 40

Number of

Remuneration Bands Individuals

i A0 IN i}

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 31,000,000 70 8
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001# 7€ £ 1,500,000% 7T 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good HHEGEZLUBRB ML RIREEE RN
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the REZ IRMER R E A EENER BIF RS

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function. VA B B EB R I o
Corporate governance functions ﬁ%%?ﬁﬂ%ﬁg

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate HHEGABEMEARANFIZREETRBRK
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance JEAT BB TG IS 4

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on (1) HIET ek st AR ARl 2 B EEFIBBUR &

corporate governance; ﬁ%ﬁ ;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional 2 METhEREERGREMABZR
development of the Directors and senior management; Bl EE A1

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in (3) MEBEHEEEEREms REREARN
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; A Z BUR R ER

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance 4) Mgl - e EREHNEE R ES
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and ZsrHER R & B FEM (A ; K

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure (5) MEET A E ST R EE IR TR Z S
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing B b BRI E 2 A SR IR o 2 )
Rules. B

Bl BRER R A B A ) 4 5
2020/2021 4F$
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, all the Directors have confirmed their compliance with the

Securities Code in their securities transactions during the Current Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Current
Year were audited by BDO whose term of office will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that BDO be nominated for re-appointment as

the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BDO provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Current Year, audit services fee and non-audit services fee amounted

to approximately HK$1.35 million and HK$0.03 million respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

Crown International Corporation Limited
4 6 Annual Report 2020/2021

AT ol 7 28 B Z PR S
W

O ER R TR T R IR B2
7 25 00 (TR SRR L
LELICESRE PR YN &3 T
38 %5 22 55 1 < ) (RIS ) B 2
e o BB A 1R HE 2 R 2 AT
o L R0 5 A A P 75 228 53
ERET ST -

¥od N7 % B Bl

AR AEE 2 EEZGOGM B RRCTH
NLAF T B % AT R T I i g B 4
REGRNIER FRERTRBREFS
R AVACE P9 N VRS TR N o L
T 22 1 7% M N2 A% BT

AR T BE 2 AR N ) 2 W B AR R A
AR o MBS A% BT 2 AL R IR E %
AR B BRI B E R A
Al B (sl s e228) (TAWERL) 5
4osTRMEM MR MG HER - FREH
& £ 1 fe R 8 N7 % AT 4 A5 7 B R OR SR A

o
AVA

JRA AR JEE > A% B B e IF A% U 5
F 53 A9 751,35 7 B 7T 5 0.03 F B TT ©

L B B N B 2 EAE

B B A T B e S R 2 e
AR > DURE O % 55 MBS v HOE A IE M
J W A £ (82 5% 9 il oz o s R T~ SE A R
Bl 1 & o A 2y E B AR T IR B P A
BN EER BN G RERGER - EHA
T e DR 288 e EUROIE ) B R < @ EEBOR
DUJse Fiv 6 ) B B A s 29 o8 o 1 B 5 B



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Directors are aware of an entrusted loan with a total principal of
approximately HK$591,400,000 (equivalent to RMB500,000,000) has
become repayable on demand as, pursuant to the terms of the entrusted
loan, the Group failed to pay certain instalments of principal, related
interest and penalty totaling HK$355,770,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB300,786,000). As at 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, this amount is still unsettled.
However, as at 31 March 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to HK$1,053,000 only. These conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Further discussion on this issue has been set out in Note

2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

Having made appropriate enquiries and examined the major areas which
will give rise to the aforesaid significant financial exposure, the Directors,
based on the cash flow projections which has been prepared on the basis that
the Group will successfully implement the plans and measures as set out in
Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements, are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations in the
next twelve months from 31 March 2021. In this connection, the Directors
have continued to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis for the year ended 31 March 2021 and considered that the
Group has applied consistent accounting policies and made judgments
and estimates that are appropriate and reasonable in accordance with the

applicable accounting standards.

BDO, the Independent Auditor, has presented its responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Current Year as set out on pages 72 to 175 of

this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for internal controls and reviewing
its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that assets
are adequately protected against unauthorised use or disposal and that the
interests of Shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organisation structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function and considered it
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external professional
internal control consultant firm, ROMA Risk Advisory Limited (“ROMA”),

to provide internal audit services to the Group on an annual basis.

ROMA has conducted evaluation and tests in connection with the following

management’s assertions for the Current Year:
(1) the system of internal control of the Group is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

Crown International Corporation Limited
4 8 Annual Report 2020/2021

P TR B 7% e J B B

O AR R P B B S MR AT LA
AN RA —EBOR R 0 & S
FEAT DR R > By b R A8 132 R £ P s o) 85
Sl e ok F o) 2 M6 i R e o A 28 ] B E T
ST DUE BE (1 JF 38 BR) AR RE 22 BCE 5 H
1o JL g Al R % il R RE 2 7 Ak Y B
KB i Bt el s R R S B (HJRAE D) 2
fRag o

A A AR P S R R
REFRJE Je & B 2 TS P2 7 o B 3 e 0 AR
7 & W BT PR 22 U 2 S E 2 N
2 DUPRFF A R%CRG P 5R NS ~ M 5~ B e
RREE N

LR A AR RE AT IR R IR Al 2
PRI C.2 1 BE 2 4R B B AL A
S FE AR AR AR ROE R OR > BB % HE TS
WS HEAT P9 Bl A A I RE - B R o AL
AN T BB — S A A S B e
AEEES R ARAR (TS &
A 1) AR 55 10 412 36 PR 0 o A 5

JRAAE > B IS C AT A BT SIS B R
B 5l e Bl

(1) AERIE 2 AR B 12 1 B 2% A 3K
2) ALEZREEHERF /AR &

(3) A% s A e 1 % 7 Ak 5 A 3.2 S



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ROMA also formulates the annual internal audit plan and procedures,
conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of each division
to identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans and makes
recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to the Audit
Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit process.
The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues

and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The Board considers the risk management and internal control systems are

effective and adequate.

The Company will continue, where necessary, to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Current Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.
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The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

The Company arranges for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Shareholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Shareholder, the amount
of shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Sharcholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 902, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3168 2588

Fax: (852) 3168 2599

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Sharecholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. Ms. HUNG Man, an executive
Director and the Chairman, attended the 2020 annual general meeting. The
chairmen of the Audit Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board
Committee (where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’

meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and a

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crownicorp.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. During the Current Year, there was no change in the

constitutional documents of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHRS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, property development,
hotel operations, financial consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare
planning and management services. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Current Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 72 of this annual report.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Current Year (Last Year: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 176 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Current
Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and
. . . « . .
regulations are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this

annual report.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders’ relationship is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.

Crown International Corporation Limited
5 2 Annual Report 2020/2021

HEREHRGHERAEERE T
FHA =+ —HIL 2 S HE ARG MBS
e

FREH

AN T 2 T B 2 R B TR R Y
Al $2 LA B R 5 o A B I AL Y KR
B VSRR TR Rl R IR S e
R R 5 ) B 5 2 5 o AR N )
& 28 W) 2z 3 S WU R S S R R
19°

EHUB ST IR

A G IR A AR 2 EBRR AR B2 H
ZER A IR R o

HHEGARBIREAEERPRE (LE
B f) o

R ER

A 55 1 388 25 S BROAE R 2 SR A e L
BT E RN A E R 176 H

EBH BB

A AR A ER M R B 2 S e oy i B
AEFEESE M BERAZETERNZ AR
i 17 36 2 3 L B B AN B B A 3R D e S
TR B TR R 2 I8 DU RO A 45 3 T B &)
B oy Wt e TERSE ~ + & e A TR R ) A B o

I J7 A B [ 2 15 2 S 5 o A A B Rl E
AR R 3% Ji 2 $8 7R 2 R ROR A AR T 3 %8
& B B B i B o3 BT A5l

BEAh > A B2 1 B 47 5 B 4 2 o i O A
T B e B g3 i



Report of the Directors (continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Current Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 49% of the Group’s total turnover and the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total turnover. The purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately 93% of the
Group’s total purchases and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 99% of the

Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Current Year (Last Year:
Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Current Year are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

76 of this annual report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to

Nil (31 March 2020: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BONDS ISSUED

Details of the bonds issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Current Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. HUNG Man (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Yong Jun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LIU Hong Shen (Vice Chairman)

Mr. MENG ]Jin Long

Non-executive Director:

Mr. SUN Yu (Chairman)
(appointed on 16 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LONG Tao
(resigned on 30 April 2021)
Mr. HE Dingding
(appointed on 20 May 2021)
Mr. REN Guo Hua
Mr. CHEN Fang
Mr. WONG Siu Hung Patrick
(appointed on 3 March 2021)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and not less than one-third)
who have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by

the Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. LIU Hong Shen, Mr. SUN Yu, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr.
WONG Siu Hung Patrick shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Mr. HE
Dingding, Mr. REN Guo Hua, Mr. CHEN Fang and Mr. WONG Siu
Hung Patrick, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. At the date of this annual report, the Company

considers all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 26 to 32 of

this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including executive Directors
and INEDs) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions

in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than

statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers” liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

SEETHRSE @

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Current Year, and no equity-linked agreements to which the Company is a

party subsisted as at 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or their respective close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) was interested in any business which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
. . . , .
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, there are
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, which subsisted at end of the Current Year or at any time

during the Current Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Current Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

were as follow:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest

WHAW RE 22 P B
Ms. HUNG Beneficial owner
RE+ HRA A
Interest of controlled corporation’
PR 2 R
Mr. LI Interest of a controlled corporation?
= 2R 2 R A
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underlying total number of
Shares? issued Shares *
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212,336,000 (L) 6.19%
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Note:

1. Redstone Capital Corporation (“Redstore”) beneficially owned 338,332,000
Shares. CLC beneficially owned 1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Crown Landmark Fund L.P. (“CLF”), which is in turn wholly-
owned by Crown International Fund Corporation (“CIF”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. Hung. Thus, Ms.
HUNG is deemed to be interested in 338,332,000 Shares of the Company held
by Redstone and 1,218.982,000 Shares of the Company held by CLC.

2. Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (“Eternal Glory”) beneficially owned
102,336,000 Shares and through its wholly-owned subsidiary Rising Century
Limited (“Rising Century”) owned 110,000,000 Shares. Eternal Glory owned
as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU Xin Jun (“Ms. LIU”). Thus, Mr.
LI is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Eternal Glory and Rising

Century.
3. “L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.
4. The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of Shares in issue

as at 31 March 2021 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, neither the Director,
nor the chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates, had an
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

58

Bt ak

1. Redstone Capital Corporation (I Redstone )
T ai #E A 338,332,000 £} ° Crown
Landmark Fund L.P. (T CLF)) Z 2 &8
o ) L R AR A 1,218,982,000/% B
iy e CLFH RedstoneZ 4= & Iff J& A F] Crown
International Fund Corporation (I CIF J) #
£ AR HEDS © Redstone HIAE L L B M A o
PR L » BE 42 AR 2 R Redstone E F A 2
338,332,000 % AR 23 W] H i e 5 0t B A
BEAH 21,218,982,000/% A 23 F I 473 4 A HE

>z
fm ©

2. Eternal Glory® 7 102,336,000/% A /A H]
W& 7 T 5 28 42 # B 88 /A W Rising Century
Limited (" Rising Century ]) %7 110,000,000
WEAR A FI DT © Eternal GloryH1 2258 B
50% 8 13 HE 2 B B0 B A0t (T4 ) B
A 50% M fE 2 o TR L > 2 0 AR AR 2 R
Eternal GloryRising CenturyT#EH Z B
HEARER -

3. DL ARERAE A 2 AR 4y B B A 13 v B
gO

4, ZHALOECEAR/FRRZ-ZZ-—F=H
=+ —HE TR 488 (B13,430,000,000
R ) o o

PRUUEPE AN IR = F = =+ —
H> #EHsl AN R&EITERN BRI FEZ
1 B 2 N R S R A 22 ) A B T T
FE AT R B3 ~ B e 3 B 13 25 v 4 A
i BB o (G2 B TR IR 1)) BEX VIR I
) > MRIE B 27 R B GG X VER 78
A (Rt ORI R 27 B ST B AR 81 ) 1) A ol
ST HHEA B AR 2 A RO RE SR BB > B8R
MR (27 BT R ]) 5352 B R SR A 13
] REE 5 17 9 B R b SRR R
B 5% 1 0 T R A CREE <3 QI B 6 U RIAC
ATV B



Report of the Di+r+ectors (Continued)
EFEEHRT @

F e b LA N L iR B By
BB b7 2 Rk B B¢ 4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the corporations or RZZBZ—-F=ZH =T —H #BALH
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in TRAB 8 77 B B 5 B S 33616 17 B 2 8w it
the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by FRstd% BRA A E #E F R g &7 A B4
ZAFI BN LR R M B R A 2

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

MR ¢
Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares® issued Shares ¢
Bty BT R
B 44 1 R P HHBH B B > By 2 o7 bbe
CLC Beneficial owner! 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
=Ygl HuA N
CLF Interest of controlled corporation’ 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
TR 2 R A
CIF Interest of controlled corporations' 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
PR 2 R
Redstone Beneficial owner! 338,332,000 (L) 9.86%
HEAN
Interest of controlled corporations' 1,218,982,000 (L) 35.54%
TR 2 R A
Eternal Glory Beneficial owner? 102,336,000 (L) 2.98%
HalAa N
Interest of controlled corporation? 110,000,000 (L) 3.21%
YR 2 RS
Rising Century Beneficial owner? 110,000,000 (L) 3.21%
BEA N
Ms. LIU Interest of controlled corporations? 212,336,000 (L) 6.19%
B+ PR 2 RS
SR BER S A A )

2020/2021 4F$
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Name of Shareholders

JBe HE 41 il

Crown International Corp.

Nature of Interest

RS 1

Beneficial owner?

Limited (“CIC”)

S B PR E A R A

HimsA N

(Teef R )

Topper Alliance Limited

Interest of controlled corporation?

(“Topper Alliance”)

Mr. DONG Feng (“Mr. DONG”)
Hig et (THRE )

China Huarong Asset

SR 2 R A

Interest of controlled corporations?

VTR 2

Interest of controlled corporations*

Management Co., Ltd.

P I 5 2 A LR A7 A BR 23 )

Note:

60

VTR 2

Redstone beneficially owned 338,332,000 Shares. CLC beneficially owned
1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CLE which is in
turn wholly-owned by CIFE, a wholly owned subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is
solely owned by Ms. HUNG. Thus, each of CLE, CIF and Redstone are deemed
to be interested in the Shares owned by CLC, and Ms. HUNG is deemed to be

interested in the Shares interested by Redstone.

Eternal Glory beneficially owned 102,336,000 Shares. Rising Century
beneficially owned 110,000,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eternal Glory, which in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU,
Therefore, Eternal Glory was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Rising Century, and Mr. LI and Ms. LIU was deemed to be interested in Shares
held by each of Rising Century and Eternal Glory.

CIC beneficially owned 800,000,000 Shares and is wholly-owned by Topper
Alliance. Topper Alliance is solely owned by Mr. DONG and Topper Alliance
and Mr. DONG is deemed to be interest in the Shares owned by CIC.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Shares® issued Shares ¢
mebr, e 1y
HIBHRE B 5 B 2 E 5 bbe
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%
800,000,000 (L) 23.32%
2,018,982,000 (L) 58.86%

B e

Redstone® % ## H 338,332,000 & £ o
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BB HEA o KL > CLF ~ CIF K Redstone
5 E W A S B B O A R
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Eternal Glory™ i 4 102,336,000 B f77 ©
Rising Century® i i 110,000,000H% i
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Report of the Directors (continued)

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. on 29 June 2020, Fresh Idea Ventures Limited (“FIV”)
held security interest in 2,018,982,000 underlying Shares and FIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Linewear Assets Limited (“Linewear Assets”). Linewear
Assets is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong International Financial
Holdings Limited (“HIFH”). HIFH is owned as to 51% by Camellia Pacific
Investment Holding Limited (“CPIH”). CPIH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Huarong International Holdings Limited (“CHIH”). CHIH is held as to
1.80% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. (“HZIM”),
as to 13.36% by Huarong Industrial Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“HIIM”) and as to 84.84% by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“CHAM”). Each of HZIM and HIIM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHAM.
Accordingly, Linewear Assets, HIFH, CPIH, CHIH, HZIM, HIIM and CHAM
are deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by FIV by virtue of
the provisions of the SFO.

“L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2021 (i.e. 3,430,000,000 Shares).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the Share

Option Scheme is set out below:

(@

(if)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
Directors, including the INEDs, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group, the
Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10

years from that date.

EFEEHRT @

B P IR 5 R A PR A B FD R
B BAEIN A UH 1F KR RE 25 B 85 A
A1 Fresh Idea Ventures Limited (I FIV |) JA
2,018,982,000 AH B i f3 v 4 A 4R AT AE 2
HFIVZLinewear Assets Limited (I Linewear
Assets |) B2 E & A W] o Linewear Assets
S [0 o < 2 A PR 2 D (T e e
SPEL) By 2B 2 F] o i R R <
FHCamellia Pacific Investment Holding Limited
(TCPIH 1) ¥EA 51%HE 75 o CPTH 2% H B 52
R e A R (T v g Dl S 4
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(iii) The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued

(iv)

)

(vi)

upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 343,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the shares

in issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding share options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of share options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant must be separately approved by the Sharcholders in
general meeting of the Company with such grantee and his/her close

associates abstaining from voting.

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
shall be a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence from the offer date, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of

the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share

Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

(vii) An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days

from the date of offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of an option.

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme

(ix)

shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots
of the Shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; and
(b) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days immediately

preceding the offer date.

The life of the Share Option Scheme is until the tenth anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is terminated by resolution of the

Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

During the Current Year, no share options were granted, exercised or

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme and no share options

were outstanding as at 31 March 2021.
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(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

R 6 G 5t 38 0% 37 452 ) 22 i O
HEAT {0 BRF ] B AL 4% e B3 AT 2 B w4
W H %343,000,000/% * 5% L A% 3 15 7
AR H A AR E TR I10% ©

JR AT 12108 9T R > TR AR 48 A R
il [ B 44 AR 452 152 H 2 B A HE (L5 2
A7 o B ) R AT 2 B e ) A AT (S T
C# T el T RAT 2 R B0 A9
AR AT ERCEITRAZ1% (T
NBRE ) o RECE Rt A — P R
T Lk A Ao 1 218 F 300 1 2 — 20 52
A fE N FRAE < i A b e ZH AT TR
N F)REHROR & b HUS R R AL E mA
NSNS $3 L INEE Eeh
fiE o

$i P HEE v R 92 O R T ) 2 R
HYUE B R A RN 2 R R R
P B AT i o A T 300 ) W] b 2 4 H
AL R 46 1 g 28 0 ZEIA PR A2 o B
HEE st 10 M1k HAZ g Rk
RSCRRR -

PR JE 5 5 17 DL 0 M R 1A AR AR 4R
B2 AT o A PR R i R R )
Sz 48 78 AT 66 Al 26 7 A I A ME 2 B
R AE ©

BN 2 W R A AR HH
) H W21 H PR AW o 12 48 T 42
PR R IRF 2 SO 1B e R U

(viii) Wi He AR st 3 T 240 R £ < o i o B

(ix)

fid e AR P EE (D
TRE) H 3 (ea 28 2 8 56 1) 122
FHWMERF R - FRETEHEE
(58 5 2 Wi M8 5 Je (b) B A i 3R 4 %
#9 H YT AT 18 2 2 A B S B i H
R ATR Z YU T -

i s RE w31 2 A 000 2 R A i A
AR ElE HREEHE I F L REE
He BRI B SRR b DA 58 77 A& 1k
i R HE T ) Ik (DA L3 2 ) o

TS AR A JEE > RO T P AR U PG EE it ) 42
AT GRS MR & — =
H = A — H M08 R AT (o 2 i R o



Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Current Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of

age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2021 are
being disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Such

transactions, insofar as they constitute:

(a) compensations paid to Directors, are connected transactions which are
fully exempt from the disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.95 of

the Listing Rules; and

(b) compensations paid to members of the senior management of the
Company, are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the Current Year are set out in the section headed

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEHRT @

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events subsequent to the year and up to the
date of approval of this report which had materially affected the Group’s

operating and financial performance.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares during the Current Year and up to the date

of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Effect from 8 May 2019, BDO was appointed as the auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Current Year have been
audited by BDO. A resolution will be proposed to the AGM to re-appoint

BDO, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

SUN Yu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 175, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared

in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obrtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZHEMR S @

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1(a) in the consolidated financial statements,
which states that as detailed in Note 26(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, an entrusted loan with a total principal of approximately
HK$591,400,000 (equivalent to RMB500,000,000) has become repayable
on demand as, pursuant to the terms of the entrusted loan, the Group failed
to pay certain instalments of principal, related interest and penalty totaling
HK$355,770,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB300,786,000). As at 31
March 2021 and up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, this amount is still unsettled. However, as at 31 March 2021,
the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to HK$1,053,000
only. As stated in Note 2.1(a), these events and conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 2.1(a), indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the “Material Uncertainty Related to
Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below to

be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Notes 2.7 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were
approximately HK$1,992,545,000 as at 31 March 2021, with a fair
value loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 on investment properties of

approximately HK$76,021,000.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Valuations performed by the independent external valuer appointed by
management were obtained for all the investment properties to support
management’s estimated fair values, which were derived using the direct
comparison method. The valuations were dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, including comparable
market transaction prices of the completed investment properties, as

adjusted for property-specific factors.

We identified the valuation of investment properties stated at fair value
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the investment properties
balances and the significant judgement involved in making the key

assumptions in determining the valuation.

Our Response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of the fair value
P g

of the investment properties included:

*  Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodologies applied on

the fair value determination of these investment properties;

e Evaluating the reasonableness and relevance of key inputs and

assumptions used in the fair value determination; and

* Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and reasonableness of

the key inputs and assumptions used in the fair value determination.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found the key assumptions
used in the management’s assessment of the fair value of the investment

properties were supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZHEMR S @

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
. . , . . .
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibility in this regard.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZHEMR S @

*  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a gOiIlg concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Yin Fan

Practising Certificate Number P03113

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FAEEEWER
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — % ——1F = H = —H IL FF /&

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 3 T#L Tt
Revenue g B - 5 13,866 14,914
Other (losses)/gains, net HAth (&548) & F) 1548 6 (7,759) 31
Other income /E\:{ﬂu&()\ R 1,056 156
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment TQE%%ZZ\?{%
properties, net (5 48) /%j”‘( RH 15 (76,021) 41,198
Loss on written off of other receivables, i 25 ,H\:ﬁﬂﬂquﬁfﬁIﬂ N
prepayments and deposits TR AR B 2 e iE (22,000) -
Staff costs g B Rl A . ~ 7 (13,707) (13,763)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 ~ ik 55 Fe 5% 0 47 85 14 (8,189) (8,558)
Other operating expenses HAth 482 B =2 (8,405) (11,080)
Operating (loss)/profit 88 OB#) HA (121,159) 22,898
Finance income B A 8 40 185
Finance costs W A 8 (586) (1,115)
Finance costs, net 5 AR T3 ________(5_4_6_)_________(9_3_0_)_
(Loss)/profit before income tax %Eﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁ (5 18) i Al 9 (121,705) 21,968
Income tax credit/(expense) Fiig s, (B 7)) 10 15,823 (13,168)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEW OB HD iR ~ (105,882) 8,800
Other comprehensive loss: JLAth % i s s
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to  H.f% ] A BT 70 JH B HH 2
profit or loss: ZIHH k
Currency translation differences Bl E A ; 158,511 (135,0806)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of i~ H 5 F & 2\ B 1& iR BR
subsidiaries [ 52 i s 74 -
Item that will not be reclassified to K@%ﬁﬁ\;@ﬁifiﬁ)ﬁ
profit or loss: ZIH
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair Fﬁéﬁzfﬁﬁf&,\ﬂﬂﬁﬁuﬁ
value through other comprehensive income i 2 A 2 N E
52 ) 16 (1,765) (935)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) AR LA 2 i W,
for the year g 156,820  (136,021)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ERNEMEE, (EHHE)
for the year k] 50,938 (127,221)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: DU 75 HEAS Ofs48) B A -
Owners of the Company ZISZ\\EJ%E)\ (105,243) 9,379
Non-controlling interests FEPER R 2 (639) (579)
(105,882) 8,800
Total comprehensive income/(loss) u?_ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁl&ﬁ/
attributable to: (s ) 4 -
Owners of the Company ﬁﬁﬁl%ﬁ}\ 51,636 (126,675)
Non-controlling interests IEPE R 2R (698) (546)
50,938 (127,221)
Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share Ay ] iﬁﬁ{\]ﬁfﬁﬂf W 5
attributable to owners of the Company for 3/ B2 #0 (s 4H) / .
the year (expressed in HK cent per share) R (BLRE R Al 52 %) 11 (3.07 HK cents#ifll)  0.27 HK cencifé il
The notes on pages 78 to 175 are an integral part of these consolidated F78R175H 2 INEE g I F 4 S M S iR 2
financial statements. —HB43 o
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

Asar 31 March 2021 J# —~ & ~—F=H=+—H

2021 2020
R —F R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
L T Fib
Assets =1:3
Non-current assets JE i B &
Property, plant and equipment BN N & 14 293,549 203,990
Investment properties BB 15 1,992,545 1,911,983
Financial asset at fair value through i /A [ =i N =R A 4T
other comprehensive income Ya s = 4 e i 16 - 1,765
Deposits iy 20 1,251 699
Deferred income tax assets WRIE TS HR 25 - 760
2,287,345 2,119,197
Current assets Ui B &
Trade receivables JEE WL B 5 TR K 21 689 9,626
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H Al 8 SRR T
TEAS AR B i 8 20 261,278 266,283
Properties under development for sale REREpYE 18 1,069,445 866,976
Restricted bank balances 2 BRI A FH #R 47 45 B 22 12,949 12,191
Cash and cash equivalents e KRB GEEY 22 1,053 1,501
1,345,414 1,156,577 B
Total assets = oL | _316_3_2_,25_9_ _____ 3 _,2_7_5_, Z7_4_ B
Liabilities fafii
Current liabilities il
Other payables and accruals LAl 8 A~k K T e R £ 1 23 579,961 356,683
Amount due to a director AT — 44 H H K IH 24 19,227 -
Borrowings E¥E 26 642,360 560,273
Lease liabilities iEREHER 17 5,135 8,246
Income tax payable JEAS P12 7,680 4,895
___L254363 930,097
Net current assets Ui B & A TR 91,051 226,480
Total assets less current liabilities K P DR E) £ i 2,378,396 2,345,677

Bl BRER R A B A ) 7 3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

EEMBREER @

Asar 31 March 2021 R & ~—F=H=+—H

2021 2020
TR F R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
By 5 T# L Tt
Non-current liabilities B A
Other payables and accruals JHAth R A 78R T B B it L1 23 5,256 5,623
Borrowings f&E 26 - 38,230
Lease liabilities L £ fE 17 9,750 2,776
Deferred income tax liabilities BEIE 1SR A A 25 410,391 396,987
425,397 443,616
Net assets FERE 1,952,999 1,902,061
Equity %
Capital and reserves A B Lk i
Share capital FEA 27 1,979,067 1,979,067
Other reserves HoAth 75 H5 (26,285) (77,921)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A5 2% w) B i N ME A HiE 3 1,952,782 1,901,146
Non-controlling interests R PR RE 2R 217 915
Total equity 2 48 %A 1,952,999 1,902,061

The financial statements on page 72 to 175 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf

Ms. Hung Man
2 R
Chief Executive Officer
1TIBAE#

The notes on pages 78 to 175 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

moEmEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #F — & — GAS SIS aaa g Nine 58

Attributable to owners of the Company

LY:EE 2N )
Financial
assets Non-
Share Capital Exchange at FVOCI Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
HATA
Jefb 2t 4k
ZAMY R
Ak N 1] 54 e Al it A REERA BE RRRER WA
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Tl T Tl T Tl
Balance at 1 April 2020 REBCREWA-H2EB 1979067 7,915 (235,036) (935) 12,025 138,110 1,901,146 915 1,902,061
Comprehensive loss: R
~ Loss for the year —ER R = = = = = (105,243) (105,243) (639) (105,882)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: b2 () A <
- Change in fair value of financial — AP AR 2
asset at fair value through other Wi 2 S
comprehensive income AFEEE = - - (1,765) - - (1,765) - (1,763)
~ Currency translation differences ~BIE AR - = 158,570 = - = 158,570 (59) 158,511
- Release of exchange reserve upon — T R A ]
disposal of subsidiaries PR SO Gt = = 74 = = = 74 = 74
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 1ii () /A4 - - 158,644 (1,765) = (105,243) 51,636 (698) 50,938
Balance at 31 March 2021 BB AEZ S —H
ki 1,979,067 7915 (76,392) (2,700) 12,025 32,867 1,952,782 217 1,952,999
Balance at 1 April 2019 REZ-VENA-RZER 1979007 7915 99917) - 12,025 128,731 2,027,821 - 2,027,821
Comprehensive income/(loss): A/ (k) :
- Profit for the year —HE AR - - - - - 9,379 9,379 (579) 8,800
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: iz OB H) /WA -
- Change in fair value of financial R AR 2T
asset at fair value through other Wi 2 S
comprehensive income ATEEE) - - - (935) - - (935) - (935)
~ Currency translation differences — KRR - - (135,119) - - (135,119) 33 (135,086)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income il (k) /WA 4 - - (135,119) (935) - 9,379 (126,675) (546) (127,221)
Capital received from non-controlling HIER R R O E A
interests - - - - - - - 1,461 1,461
Balance at 31 March 2020 REB-REZN =4 —H
itk 1,979,067 7915 (235,036) (935) 12,05 138,110 1,901,146 915 1,902,061

The notes on pages 78 to 175 are an integral part of these consolidated H78ZE175H Z M E Bt F 4 &M B HR 2
5

financial statements. —h
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7l’\ EE@/}IL%%

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2021 2020
R CZORE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 52 T#x T#IT
Cash flows from operating activities KB 2Bl R
(Loss)/profit before income tax ERATIS R AT (5 18) i Al (121,705) 21,968
Adjustments for: PAEIEH -
Finance costs WA FHEAEMNR
(other than interest on lease liabilities) ERA) 303 335
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEME 283 780
Finance income WA 8 (40) (185)
Depreciation on property, plant and Y2~ B B e AT B
equipment 14 8,189 8,558
Gain on lease modification HHE & SR A (335) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEYE - WE K
plant and equipment etz (R e 6 (146) 6
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment BEYEZ N EE
properties, net W58, (B A FEE 15 76,021 (41,198)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H BN E A F 2 k8 6 249 -
Impairment loss on other properties 1 B A H AR &
leased for own use LEEY[E 14 7,656 -
Loss on written off of other receivables, B JEL A R KRR I ~ FEASE
prepayments and deposits FRIE B 64 2 4R 22,000 -
Changes in working capital BHEESR
Trade receivables 5 ) JE L B ) IR K 8,148 (9,871)
Other receivables, prepayments L Ath 8 LA RR I ~
and deposits FEAS R0 B < 2,113 (110,545)
Properties under development for sale FEERREDYE (76,432) (124,173)
Other payables and accruals ,E\:ﬂﬂ}@ﬁ‘ KIH e
= 144,833 149,903
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations B, (i) Z
Bl 1A 71,137 (104,422)
Net cash generated from/(used in) LBEWMBE, 0N
operating activities ZBlepw 71,137 (104,422)
Cash flows from investing activities BARHZ2BEG R
Purchase of property, plant and equipment iAW 3F ~ Wi B pf (75,362) (34,935)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and BV W E B
equipment A5 7K I8 146 292
Addition of investment properties WEREYE = (1,462)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value Eﬁﬁ?’ N PN i
through other comprehensive income A R AR < R = (2,700)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances PRI SZ BRI FH #RAT 4 247 12,995
Interest received EF R 40 185
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries, HY 85 B 88 2 =) PR A5 sk 0E
net of cash disposed EETEA N 195 =
Net cash used in investing activities SAEB N 2 BLE T8 (74,734) (25,625)

7 6 Crown International Corporation Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

= A N il — 1 -
TRRERER®
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #F — & — AT S e S B e o

2021 2020
—2=—& —zoEf
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
B ik T#T T#IT
Cash flows from financing activities A S ) 2 Bl E i w
Proceeds from issue of bonds BEATE 77 Z A5 R0 - 36,045
Repayment of bonds RS (4,500) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease HEBHE A A ST
liabilities (7,487) (7,377)
Repayment of interest portion of lease B E B 2 AR5
liabilities (283) (780)
Interest paid ErFE (3,885) (31,679)
Capital received from non-controlling interests  F JE#3 A 8 7 W X 1) & A< - 1,461
Advance from a director HEHERG 19,227 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) RSB ) 2
financing activities A 3,072 (2,330)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BHERMEFEMZ
Wb (525) (132,377)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RMER 2 S R &5 EY) 1,501 140,323
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and HEeEhREEEY
cash equivalents BE SE R R, O 1) 77 (6,445)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RAER 2 B4 B B S5 W) 22 1,053 1,501
The notes on pages 78 to 175 are an integral part of these consolidated H78ZE175H Z M E Bt F 4 &M B HR 2
financial statements. —HRsT o

Bl BRER R A B A ) 7 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e MBI MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

1

78

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment, (ii)
property development, (iii) hotel operations, (iv) provision of financial
consultancy service and (v) provision of comprehensive healthcare
planning and management services, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 902, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong which is also

its principal place of business.

Pursuant to an announcement of the Company dated 13 January 2021,
Mr. Edward Simon Middleton, Ms. Yeung Mei Lee and Ms. Yeung Ka
Man of Alvarez & Marsal Asia Limited were appointed by Fresh Idea
Ventures Limited as joint and several receivers over the 2,018,982,000
ordinary shares of the Company, beneficially owned by Crown
International Corp. Limited and Crown Landmark Corporation,
representing approximately 58.86% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company (the “Receivership”). For details of the Receivership and
the relevant updates, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 11 February 2021, 11 March 2021, 9 April 2021, 7 May 2021
and 7 June 2021.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Directors consider the ultimate
holding company to be Redstone Capital Corporation, incorporated in

the Samoa.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HKS$”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue

by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2021.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation of
financial statements. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain

financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Going concern assumption

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the Directors have given consideration to the
operations of the Group and considered that the Group
can continue as going concern notwithstanding that the
following matters are identified that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash
flows to meet its liquidity needs and continue as a going

concern:

2

FRAEHBORBER

SR A A o W S AR T A
ZEEGEBOR - BRA A EYESN It
FEORCRATA 2504 ERE -

2.1 &Lk

ek B BR 8 A [R 2 B B 5% 5 A
& MBS IR IR A A
S 5 i o TR A B o e R R
s B OO 2 TR M B s
Q) DUR A T B 5 R A
5 9w A o ST A A o LA
MBWMERATRBESZHNA
FR 2 ] 38 27 L i R RN A 2 i
PEEEE R o &R 5 B IR TR R
JEE SR RA TR R MR A B M AP
Hel BB EYE G TR T
HERA

A AT 5 7 S 5 T TR R 2
5 ¥ 2% 7 B A TR B A
Al 7R R BRI R A 1
B R IRE 1 LA B o AR S RS
A B 490 B8 PP B o JEE ) B R
AL > sRA B R e fili 5 A7
o W s R T T R N o

(a) PFAAFEE R

iR i A S 1 ) o B 5
R HHEOHEI AL
1) %8 28 NIf 2 2 A 5 [ W] DL 4
WRFRASE B I E DL
R AT AR B A R B RE E A
JE 5 B4 3 LA 2 I B 1 R
SR Be R 48 4588 1) RE 1 W R R
KEEM -

Bl BRER R A B A ) 79
2020/2021 4F$



sl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2

30

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(i)  the operations of the Group has deteriorated due to the
Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic as one of
the main operations of the Group is sales of properties
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Even
though the lockdown measures were released after the
pandemic situation improved, economic conditions
have not returned to the level before COVID-19. As a

result, properties sales of the Group has been affected

significantly;

(i) an entrusted loan with a total principal of
approximately HK$591,400,000 (equivalent to
Renminbi (“RMB”) RMB500,000,000) has become
repayable on demand as, pursuant to the terms
of the entrusted loan, the Group failed to pay
certain instalments of principal, related interest
and penalty totaling HK$355,770,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB300,786,000). As at 31
March 2021 and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, this amount is
still unsettled. However, as at 31 March 2021, the

cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to

HK$1,053,000 only; and

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(iii) as at 31 March 2021, corporate bonds with a principal

and interest payments totaling HK$9,981,000 were
overdue. On 30 April 2021, a winding-up petition
against the Company (the “Petition”) was filed by the
bondholder with the Court of First Instance of the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in relation to the aforesaid overdue principal
and interest payments. On 14 May 2021, corporate
bonds with total principal of HK$50,000,000,
including the corporate bonds subject to the Petition
as described above, were transferred to an independent
third party (referred to as the “New Bondholder”).
As a result of the transfer, the New Bondholder
substituted the transferor who filed the Petition and
became the petitioner of the Petition which has still
remained in effect up to the date of approval of these

consolidated financial statements.

4= AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements were
prepared based on the going concern basis. For assessing
the appropriateness of the use of the going concern for
such preparation, the Directors have prepared cash flow
projections covering a period of not less than twelve
months and are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the

next twelve months from 31 March 2021, after taking into

consideration of the following:

(i)  the Group is actively negotiating with the banker
to remedy the late payment issue and restructure
the payment terms for the remaining amount of
the entrusted loans. As a result of the outbreak of
COVID-19, the PRC government was encouraging
banks to help enterprises to resolve their liquidity
problem. The Directors consider that an agreement

could be reached with the banker to defer the loan

repayment schedule;

(ii)  the Group is negotiating with the New Bondholder
for restructuring of the corporate bonds. Considering
the current status of the negotiation and the possible
availability of funds as described in (iii) and (iv) below,
the Directors are of the view that the New Bondholder

could withdraw the Petition and accept the new terms

of the corporate bonds;

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

2.1 i BBEHE (4)
(a) FFEEBMZ G

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(iii) as at 31 March 2021, the Group had certain
investment properties located in the PRC with fair
value of approximately HK$1,992,545,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,684,600,000), that are free
from incumbrances and can be utilised by the Group
to satisfy its short-term liquidity needs by either
disposal or pledging as security for possible bank
borrowing. The Group is exploring these options
by discussing with a property agent for the possible
disposal and with banks for the possibility of obtaining
new borrowings. Considering the fair value of those
investment properties and the amount of cash needed
to meet the Group’s short-term liquidity needs, the
Directors are in the view that the Group could be able
to source sufficient funds from these financing options,

when necessary; and

(iv) the estimated proceeds from the pre-sale of properties
under development in respect of the projects in

Weihai.

The Directors, after making due enquiries and consider the
basis of management’s projections described above, believe
that, taking into account the above mentioned actions and
planned measures and their progress, the Group will have
sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due within the next
twelve months from 31 March 2021. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern assumption (Continued)

(b)

There is a material uncertainty related to the outcomes of
the above events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Should the use of the going concern basis in preparation of
the consolidated financial statements be considered to be
inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their
net realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities to current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated

financial statements.

Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards

The following new standard and amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

beginning on or after 1 April 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current year

and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

2 BEFTHBORBE @)

2.1 i BEHE (4)
(a) FFEEEBEIZR (4

(b)

Al B DAY A SR A7 AE
HORANHEE 1 > Al BE & # A
S I ) 55 49 A8 2 E D A R
REEM > R A 88 18 A] BE
M TR AE IR B SE B W R b
5 T NN O B LA S
it 5 w8 2 1E 8 B &7 5 MBS R
Rl R R 2 AL
B AN E R JI A A AT o R
LUt A £ [ 25 ) I T L i
Ik 22 LT B B R 0 DUEFR
{E Ao ] BE A 0t B 2 2 — 2
£fE > R IR I B A A B
6 5T 20 0 2 O Bl o A
{8 o 5% 55 o B R B R
WAL B MBS R 2 o

TRAABIFEL Je BT T HERS 5T
r2EHE

DU 37 8 ) B BLAT M BB AT
BRZFZFHENA —HK
Z 1R PR YA 2 A BRI AR
SR AL

BB R
CXlivd 1l
BBGENHEIRRE EXZER
Gt Hei 2 1B

EHLER

il

BB A (kS 3P
o Bl FatiEd

ER S T
RST8]

I A A JE JEE R w T A 7 A
it 10 ) B HAB AT A A [
TR A £ T B 38 1 4 JEE F) S A5
RBIRR DR B F 57

SV 265 St % T SRR 49 23 Sl o B
-2 L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to

the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial

statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and

have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s

current intention is to apply these changes on the date they

become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 37

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause’

Property, Plant and Equipment-Proceeds before

Intended Use*

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction’

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #

=2

£ FE = H = —HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

36

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for
1 June 2020

2 Effective for
1 January 2021

’ Effective for
1 April 2021

. Effective for
1 January 2022

J Effective for

1 January 2023

annual periods beginning
annual periods beginning
annual periods beginning
annual periods beginning

annual periods beginning

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions'

6

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021°

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020¢

on

on

on

on

or

or

or

or

or

after

after

after

after

after

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective

date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the

amendments continue to be permitted.

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 FETETBORME @

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

@@

(ii)

(iii)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities

as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity

instruments, other assets or services.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to
disclose their material accounting policy information

rather than their significant accounting policies.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements-Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in
the interpretation to align with the Amendments to
HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not

change the existing requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

38

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

(iv) Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and

Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting

Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is
important because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively only to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally also applied retrospectively to

past transactions and other past events.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 FETETBORME @

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

In specified circumstances, companies are exempt from
recognising deferred tax when they recognise assets or
liabilities for the first time. Previously, there had been
some uncertainty about whether the exemption applied
to transactions such as leases and decommissioning
obligations —transactions for which companies

recognise both an asset and a liability.

The amendments clarify that the exemption does not
apply and that companies are required to recognise
deferred tax on such transactions. The aim of the
amendments is to reduce diversity in the reporting
of deferred tax on leases and decommissioning

obligations.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
cither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(c.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in

fulfilling the contract).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

(viii) Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the

Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether
at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that an

acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired

in a business combination.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

(ix) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, any gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised
in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint

venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & —

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

92

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

()

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need to
assess whether the rent concession meets the definition
of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the
rent concession. Accounting for rent concessions as
lease modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical
expedient, the Group is not required to determine a
revised discount rate and the effect of the change in
the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the

rent concession occurs.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & —

S == HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGHEIBORME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 & BILHE (4)
(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not () CraflifdpgRAEH2Z &~
yet effective (Continued) FENE 5T 75 T T 5 0 5 T
(48)
(xi) Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent (xi) BEMGHREEHZEIG

Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The 2021 Amendment to HKFRS 16 extends the
availability of the practical expedient in paragraph 46A
of HKFRS 16 so that it applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided that the other conditions for applying the

practical expedient are met.

Pz BE B 4
7NH = B B Al
I AR F) EL <8 7 R
BEM BRGS0
R T BT
R U 5 i o TR T 5
1657 546 ABL I B P HE
B R DU
A e L 5 A SRR R 12
WERARF
ANH =+ H B Z A
R VL B L < ek 0k 2H
5 5 LAt 1 B PR RE
ot o

B SRR SR A R A )

2020/2021 ¥R 9 3



sl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

94

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

(xii) Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the “Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes
to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will
not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if
the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required
to disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to

alternative benchmark rates.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 HPILHE ()

(c) CHEfiHigALERZHiE] -~
RN ET 2 7 I 5 1 E A
(%)

(xiii) 7 P S 5 i o5 MR I 2 1B
w1 7 I s T e

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

(xiii) Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to

HKEFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of

standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to

HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on

other’s behalf are included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 R HE ()
(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (c) CREMHpAREZ W5
yet effective (Continued) FENE 5T 75 T Y 5 0 5 T
€20
(xiii) Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to (xiii) B MBS R 2 &
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (Continued) w1 7 I s T T
SRR R
P2 AR R ()
D HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of . 7 BB i e R
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the Hle9k HE B
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion #1585 13 3 451 LA
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that PR A A E2EH
might arise because of how lease incentives are BB #&
illustrated in that example. i e U IR o 431 v
6 8 A R P 75
2T AY AE 2 AR A
] 5 1 FH 5 18 R R
P TEAETRTB ©
The Directors is currently assessing the impact that the oI R4 5 BT
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s o S AN B I o B S e R
consolidated financial statements. JR (1) 5 2 o
2.2 Subsidiaries 2.2 W& AN
2.2.1Consolidation 22,1455 0EH
Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) B & 2\ w1 )Y A B [ P 42 o
over which the Group has control. The Group controls Z A A (RIS &5 i
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, B o A5 B A HE
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 15 2 B —E il 2 v 4 ]
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the o BARENHEILHZEN
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which Pl kA T EACE RNk
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated Az B Z P B8
from the date that control ceases. AR Z PRI R AR

Z HE & & AR R £ il
RS E BRI AR S AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 BiHE A ] )

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued) 221455 EH (48)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
. . .
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
- , . . .
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at

their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investees net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Segment reporting

98

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

2 BEFTHBORBE @)

2.3 P 7 A % %

2.4

TP B 8 2 ) 2 #5041 R 8K
AR - RA W E 2 BH#%E
i A © S B B 2 P 2 S AR
ALEEY 93 1 &4 3SYN L

fis R S AR I E 2 B A E
IR F 2300 P B 2 ) -z 2 i
HERE > Bl i % 4% B R S B s R
N i T EL R 8 9 1R B T 2 T
EE (R RR) A& M Bk
P T > B 2 W A R B
S5 BRSJE 2 ) 45 o AR DA Bl o

ik

EH G T ATEE 33 5 N
48 P L I TR P — B
ENCEIEN -V Sl S
B SR I B EPEA
ZyF SR PE YR 2 BT S o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified as available for

sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(¢) Group companies

100

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 PO3E ~ W B it i

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Property, furniture and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years

Computer, office equipment 3 to 20 years
and machinery

Motor vehicles 5 years

Other properties leased The shorter of asset’s expected

for own use useful lives and lease terms

Y3 ~ T DS B i A A B S RS TR
LSR8 SRC RN
JEE S RS A 455 W s A Tl JEL H L
JEE A BH 52

HLAR AR Al E A 814 [ H H
FH R 2 72 A8 75 P 2k 7 O A A B2
 H%JE H 2 BRARE v] 58 1 st
BRIRF 0 77 BF A E T T (E s AR
FRLEE B M) o B A HAth
HENE Be O 2 RA TR 7 7E 2 ST TR AE
o 1 e WA A AR P ATTBR ©

Py R e Bt (FF 8 TR BR
AN T Al AT A R DUE
A5 T B RS (R 7 ST R B A
{E) F LAHT 85 o m {4 30 ~ R iR
1 e 37 88 15 19 7 45 9 5 A K s
T LU AT B oA R (fis 8 ) o mT
MR

KM B e  =FHAE

W AR = HE

i B b A

it hAE

TE B R HA & 7 = TR )

GINCEZES R E
G TR
wE

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 01



sl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

102

Leaschold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their

expected useful lives to the Group.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as
borrowing costs capitalized during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 BLEAMAN

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if

they were finance leases.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.9 Leasing

104

(i) As a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(@)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets applying
a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are carried at fair

value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

106

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

@)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts
for leasehold land and buildings which is held for own use
under HKAS 16 and are carried at depreciated cost. Other
than the above right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased
a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of asset apart from the leaschold land and
buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the right-
of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy

agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Right-of-use assets related to leaschold interests where the
interest in the land is held as inventories of properties are
included in the same line item as inventories of properties as

that within the corresponding assets.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be

readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued) 2.9 *HE (&)

(i) As a lessee (Continued) () ELARIN (&)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less at the commencement date. Payments associated with
short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as

expenses in profit or loss.

(ii) Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.10Properties under development for sale

108

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development cost of properties
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period. Upon

completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
p prop

held for sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Properties under development for sale (Continued)

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately

expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling expenses

and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current

assets unless the construction period of the relevant property

development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.

2.11Financial Instruments

@)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVIPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

110

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the

cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21140 T H &)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) EBEWEE &)
Impairment loss on financial assets RE E 2 WE S 1R
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit A 42 ) T RE OH IR’ 5 AR

loss (“ECLs”) on trade receivables, contract assets, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest

rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

112

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit

assessment and including forward-looking information.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset

has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past

due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

(2) the financial asset is more than 180 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is

calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

114

(ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings, and bond payables issued by
the Group which are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest

expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

(iii) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iv) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21140 T H &)
F-9/R T4

2.11Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v) Derecognition v)

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration

paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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2.12Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with

banks.

Bl BRER R A B A )
2020/2021 4F$

115



sl

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gr A

TV IS

SR IRERMET @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

116

2.13Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the

tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #(

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.14Provisions

118

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

2 BEFTHBORBE @)

2.13 B0 B 95 JE PR 19 B2 ()

() #HH

A AR A5 T REA
DRI S 752 7 5 7 415 9% B 31 #62
B DU B B AIE TS B
HEERAEY R ZEHH
[Fil — 62 5 44 ol 1) — e R R AR
A B 2 {1 JE R B E A
W o T A TR A TR L R A

AEER BIEFTfS AR & E R A
& LA

2. 1485

ik A £ [ [A] 28 13 3% A 2 S AR 2 K
V& BUA TR T Bk 8 BT AR A Al
RE ZH B & IR Uk ELAE 0 R A
A E Al EE Al B R A5 D AR
A o A B R & R AR S B S
TR

it 5 A 2 IR LB AT R fE R
FEEEEA RSB E
IR LA U AT 2 AT RE 1 o BV 5t
FBEEERY S ZEME—IHE
BB ER Z nREEA K JRHA
Fie B 5% £

B4 R UL R AR T R 2 52
Hh 2z B A i BR A A A R R
1T % M) 238 5 Bl B B T 455 3 2 8
I Fe] B M - W A B i TH B AT 2
S L I o F5% 15 W TR i 2 2% T
Z B G ERE R BB S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15Borrowings 2.1548 %

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of

the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or

loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Employee benefits

120

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

(©

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the

salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of

the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.19Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

2.20Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deferred and recognised in

profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

2.21Revenue recognition

122

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

2.21 WA e B8 (45D

2.21Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the

Group performs; or

*  does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not

adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,

using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

124

2.21Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Financial consultancy service

The Group provides financial consultancy service to
customers. Financial consultancy service income is
recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered. For the service contract relates to routine services,
the service income will be recognised on a straight line
basis over the contract terms as the work is performed. For
services that are provided on adhoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such ad-hoc

services.

Rental income

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight

line basis over the lease terms.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for
sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever is earlier,
which is the point in time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition were included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

2.21 WA e B8 (45D
(d) K AOERE e 355 PR WA

2.21Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Comprehensive healthcare planning and management

services income

ke 255 W A B 5 B ] F) HE A% 1T
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TEAEA B A o

Service income is recognised over time as the counterparties
simultaneously receive and consume benefits when the

Company performs the management services.
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2.22Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A B A GRS B &R
B W 5 R B R P9 B B o RO A
WER TR R e

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in

the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

2.23Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23Related parties (Continued)

126

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member Of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to

the group or to the group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEGEHBORBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 B 75 (&)

2.23Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and secks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group has not used

any derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is carried
out by the Executive Committee which identifies, evaluates
and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as credit risk and

liquidity risk.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

128

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank deposits. The exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group reassesses the
lifetime expected credit losses at the end of the reporting
period to ensure the adequate impairment losses are
made for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition. In this regard,
management of the Group considers that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of other receivables, the Group closely monitors
the credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and

assess the adequacy of provision for impairment.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 e =S A= =
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 A5 BG4 I )

CRW R S EE )
(b) Liquidity risk (b) TRBYEEEBE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans that
the Group considers appropriate. Equity and other long
term financing including strategic partnerships, or strategic
joint ventures are also considered by the Group in its capital

structuring.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 A5 BEAS P e

3.1

S 5 T B PR 2% (D)
(b) By E bR (A

Within
1 year or Between Between More than
on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total
—iER — &t X R E it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T T
As at 31 March 2021 REFZE==1 0
Other payables and accruals — FLAHEFF 0 R JE ot £ 18 447,853 1,183 3,549 1,183 453,768
Amount due to a director EN—#ERNHE 19,227 - - - 19,227
Borrowings HH 684,113 - - - 684,113
Lease liabilities HE A 5,740 5,241 5,004 - 15,985
1,156,933 6,424 8,553 1,183 1,173,093
As at 31 March 2020 REZ-ZBEZA=4—-H
Other payables and accruals — FL A JEE (S 398 B JE &£ 05 253,691 1,092 3,276 2,184 260,243
Borrowings 1 600,586 43335 - - 643,921
Lease liabilites LU 8,666 2375 512 - 11,553
862,943 46,802 3,788 2,184 915,717
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EA B P

130

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity,
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and retained earnings.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between
higher shareholders™ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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3.2

3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #( .

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
bank balance. Total capital is calculated as “Equity” as shown in
the consolidated statements of financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as

3.2

pecRE e E S~ FlIIE B
3 WAEE B PR

oA R BE A P ()

A S AR R T B B K AR
ML RBEEPEEA o % LR Ty 1% %
B bR LUE AR BB G R o A TS
T 2 A6 R H8 R U 2 B SRAT G R
At o AR MR T 12 AR A B R
LR PN B B TRE 2 ) 07 25wt

follows: Ho Q:%:*E:ﬁjﬁ“*B
BB _REZA=1T—HHN&H
EAELERGT

2021 2020

TR TR B TBAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#xL T#IT

Net debt T8 55 628,358 584,811

Total equity %%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ 1,952,999 1,902,061

Net debt to equity ratio 00 55 BALRE 2 ) L %8 32.2% 30.7%

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1).

*  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that

is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level

2).

*  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level

3).

3.3

A Z i
TR AP EYIIR 2 & TR

G A5 AE 77 IR AT Z 50 H7 o AN [ g
mFEAR

o MA & E B A E RS
52 W (REEHE) (58—
) e

o BRE —AFTE R Z MAE SN
LU P4 PN
n] R (RIE 2% (B A% BT 4%
(BRI AT 26 A (E RS ) B i 15
B8 -

- AHEESRAMEZEWAZY
fE IF F 7 Rl L 2 T 5 B
CIFNTIE E-Si -4 PN
B GB=80 -

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 3 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

132

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020:

3 JoF sl B 4 PR ()
3.3 2 FH 20wt @&

TREHN R B —F =H
= F—HERZ_ZZB_ZFHF=H
=t —HAAREmEEAEE R
ST H

Level 3 Total
W= Hm
HK$°000 HK$’000

T Tt

As at 31 March 2021 RoB D AEEZHA =1 —H

Assets =123

Financial assets at fair value through N AE S A HA 2T
other comprehensive income WA Z <& Rl g
— equity investment —RE A

As at 31 March 2020

Assets HE

Financial assets at fair value through 20 A FE A H A 2T
other comprehensive income WA 2 <l
— equity investment N

The Group measures its financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income at fair value. The financial asset was
revalued by independent qualified valuers who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the valuation of similar properties. The Group’s managements
have discussion with the independent qualified valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each annual reporting day.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BreEs  —aas s =g e S R o
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 A5 BG4 I )
3.3 B FE 25 @)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

. Net asset value of the financial instruments which is a

significant unobservable input; and

e Adjustment for discount for lack of marketability and lack
of controls are used to determine fair value for the financial

instruments.

As at 31 March 2021, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in net asset value of the
financial instrument by 5% would have increased/decreased the

group’s other comprehensive income by Nil (2020: HK$88,250).

As at 31 March 2021, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in adjustment for discount
for lack of marketability and lack of controls of the financial
instrument by 5% would have decreased/increased the group’s

other comprehensive income by Nil (2020: HK$61,158).

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 for the year.

ik — YEL B 2 YH B A i A 52 BT D
FeR Al B 2 T 5 g o Al
R AH =8

< il LA BT 0 ) 2 R A
Bl G4

« EBMTHAMNEETE ZA
CIR RSN PN PN
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o RIERZ R B R R A
G R e 2T R A
RRCUNETE(E

RoZB 4 =H=+—H 1
Pt A At 5% 5 4 RF A 5 0
N0 TE T T EL A I E R
/ﬁmww%@$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ
b 2 A UK A 3G D> (L
FAE 1 88,250/ 70) °

Ro-B—HZ=ZHA=Z+—H ' #
Pt A H A 5% B 4k 5 R 55 10 05
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 WA %5 LB 55 PR ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 B FE 2465 @)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of financial S AR RN EHN M T A
instruments classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy are provided T A7) e SR R AR SRS TS
as follows:

2021 2020
SR DE OB
HK$’000 HK$’000
T L T#IT
Unlisted equity investments JE Ll A B

At 1 April RMPA—H 1,765 -
Addition w8 m - 2,700

Decrease in fair value recognised in ah A L Ath 2 i Uk 2 Y
other comprehensive income INFE R (1,765) (935)
At 31 March R=H=1—H - 1,765

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 3 4 Annual Report 2020/2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 # £

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note
2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate to their fair values due to their short-term
maturities. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments, unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made. It is
the Group’s policy to recognise deferred tax assets for unused tax
losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily depends on the Group’s expectation of future taxable
profit that will be available against which tax losses can be
utilised. The Group has measured the deferred tax relating to
the temporary differences of their investment properties using
tax rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected

manner of recovery of their investment properties. The details of

the assessment are disclosed in Note 25.

=
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUD GEMENTS (Continued)

136

(b)

(©)

(d)

Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at each reporting date by independent valuer based
on a market value assessment. The valuers have relied on direct
comparison method as its primary methods. Details of the
valuation techniques and assumptions have been disclosed in

Note 15.

Impairment of construction in progress and
properties under development for sale

In determining whether allowance should be made to the Group’s
construction in progress and properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current market
environment and the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the actual
or estimated selling price less estimated costs to complete and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sales). An allowance is
made if the estimated net realisable value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on construction in
progress and properties under development held for sale is less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
variation in the budgeted development cost, material allowances
for impairment losses may result if the net realisable value is less

than the carrying amount.

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming
year, which is a critical judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the Directors, at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of events or conditions
which are inherently uncertain. The Directors consider that the
Group has the capability to continue as a going concern and the
major events or conditions, which may give rise to business risks,
that individually or collectively may cast significant doubt upon
the going concern assumption are set out in Note 2.1(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business component and for their review of the performance of
that component. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally
engaged in property investment, property development, hotel
operations, provision of financial consultancy service and provision of

comprehensive healthcare planning and management services.

(a) Analysis of revenue by category

5 Weai By ik

7 5 [ 5 R B ) R A PR (RN
PUTH 9 W 2 9 ER I B R R
o7 ¥ B A o AR T % S R
SV 5 R R SR T A R S S
AR o3 2 B IR 5y BEAF PR A i
182 55 8 B % A K 0 2 R B o A AT
I PR R R R S
RHLCHR 97 T B 2 W) FE R~ VISR B
05 0% 8 A~ 4 46 < ] IR A5 e FE A8
R R SR BRI S o

(@) T35 B 2 WL di

2021 2020

SR CFE T

HK$’000 HK$'000

T# L THIT

Rental income HE WA 12,066 14,588
Comprehensive healthcare planning o I T e 30 2 K ft Rl o

and management services income & PR WA
recognised over time 1,800 326
13,866 14,914

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group’s existing contracts in HK$131,855,000 (2020:
HK$102,805,000). The amount represented revenue expected to
be recognised in the future from pre-completion sales contracts
for properties under development and provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services. This amount
includes the interest component of pre-completion properties
sales contracts under which the Group obrains significant
financing benefits from the customers. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the service is rendered
or, in the case of the properties under development for sales,
when the propertiesownership are assigned to the customers
which is expected to occur over the next 12 to 21 months (2020:

next 12 to 24 months).

R~ =H=+—H0 %
MR AREEBA AN FTEITHR
B2 5 (E A8 44 %H 25131,855,000
B (ZZFEZFHF 1 102,805,000
W0 o B BAREARKEM
R RPYENTHE LUK
b R {55 ) 4 L IR 5 14 e B I
WA o 5% < 8 805 16 58 Tl ) 2%
BE SRS ko R
RAREERR S 2 ERPTH
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L B 67 e 2 T S A 2 o A 5
R REEYENS EVEMA
HE 53 B T 2 5 IR (FEGH I AE AR 2R
+ZB A —EA (CE B
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5  Wdi Be o i &Rk )
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (b) ik ER
The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed AR 28 SR T RR R A
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the BB R 4R A IR S 1 4 B A
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments KEH  REHEZEBH TS B
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and 7y — {18 SR S B B 0 P K
returns that are different from those of other business segments. 32 J\ B T I 45 I8 3 A B0 L At 2
Summarised details of the business segments are as follows: 1597 BB o B 47 B Z s B ML 4n

T

i) the property investment segment engages in investment i) VEBRE SR P EE O
of properties in cities of Yingkou, Jinggangshan and T~ He R T R P TR
Zhongshan of the PRC, the Group aims to use these Yook 4% A HR I A
properties for properties rental or capital appreciation EERVES(RVE L= A=
purposes; WERR

ii)  the property development segment engages in property i) VIEEE R A A BT
development and sales of properties in Weihai city (TR ) 2R R

("Weihai”); EIHEER

iii) the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and i) P % 2 o EOR BB S
food and beverage business in Weihai; I L R B BRIRTSS

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 3 8 Annual Report 2020/2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5  Wedi By o i &Rk )
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) iR E R &)

iv) the financial consultancy service segment engages in the iv) < R R AR 5 4 S AE S 4 fik
provision of financial consultancy service to assist customers ESRBEB IR &P
to obtain financing; SRt ;

v)  the comprehensive healthcare planning and management v) R R E A R R S o0 A
services segment engages in the provision of comprehensive HEETHEEREE 2 Kt
healthcare planning and management services to the FEREE RS K&

healthcare operators; and

vi) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than vi) ARABCIEH 782 L)
those specified in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above and (ii) > (iii) > (iv) B (v) 38 fr 3l &
includes that of the corporate office. DI 2 ZE 55 0 Bl A 6 1B 42

IS i 2 2 5

The hotel operations in Weihai is yet to commence operation R-EBZ—HFZH=+—H " H
as at 31 March 2021 as it is currently under construction. The REE TR TR E b AL B B
property development operation is currently under pre-sale stage JE B EBEORBAG  ME R
and the relevant properties are under construction. KEXEBHMERHEE D M
Io#l ) SE AT A5 B
Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties BEAHZ UL EMEL Y
and property, plant and equipment. Segment assets consist FE R Z IR o EE E
primarily of investment properties, properties under development FERREYE  BRDPEEYD
for sale, property, plant and equipment and receivables. Segment VI3 W B LU B E R R
liabilities comprise deferred income tax liabilities, operating TEAH B 53 B (e A0 45 28 I P 1S
liabilities and borrowings. Unallocated assets and liabilities MEd KEABEREE - ROE
mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the corporate office, HEKABEEERHASEERE
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any segment, A LA D d & PR L HE 4y iR 3
which include items such as cash and cash equivalents. Al 53 86 2 & T B i B B

&R BB FEYFEE -

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 3 9
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results, which represent, operating
profit less central administrative costs. The segment results,
depreciation, fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties,
impairment loss on other properties leased for own use and
capital expenditure based on reportable segments for the years

ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

5 Wedd B i E R @

(b) 4 FRE R ()

HEMHA RS (KB
A SR AT BORA) BF A B Sy
MEB - WE_F_~HFRZF
SEFE=A=tHIEEE %
AR o ER A oy 2 o SR A I
B BRAEYEZATE (BE
B E B R AR B2 2
TRAELfE5 48 he EABASCATR

140

Comprehensive
healthcare
Financial  planning and
Property Property Hotel consultancy ~ management
investment  development operations service services Unallocated Total
SRR KREHERE
WRBE I E 3 TR i 5 it U B 4 ] it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tin T T Tin T
For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% —~4=H=4—H
[R(3)
Segment revenue: S -
Revenue from external customers REINER P 2 Wit 12,066 - - - 1,800 - 13,866
Segment results SRS (66,178) (3,106) (682) (6,741) (1,060) (43,392) (121,159)
Finance income WA 40
Finance costs B R A (586)
Loss before income tax PR R AT 1 (121,705)
Income tax credit Fifd Rk s 15,823
Loss for the year FREH (105,882)
Other segment information b s
Depreciation on property, plancand 13~ i B it (47 25
equipment (228) (272) (59) (764) (675) (6,191) (8,189)
Fair value losses on investment BEMEZ ATHEE $5
properties, net (76,021) - - - = = (76,021)
Tmpairment loss on other propercies  {F I FIRISLAUAL B3 2
leased for own use A - - = = - (7,656) (7,656)
Additions to e
— Property, plant and equipment BN T 115 585 75,188 935 959 19 77,801

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2020/2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

A |
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wedi B oy iR o
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) iR E R &)
Comprehensive
healthcare
Financial ~ planning and
Property Property Hotel consultancy management
investment development operations service services Unallocated Total
DHER KRR
S LES TR g3 EHRE  ADEEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

T T T T T T T

For the year ended 31 March 2020 ~ BE_F_Z4E=J=4—H

AR

Segment revenue: il
Revenue from external customers REGE P 2 14,588 - - - 326 - 14,914
Segment results VE BT 51,737 (3,189) (700) (5,010) (1,118) (18,822) 22,898
Finance income g1 ON 185
Finance costs TSR (L,115)
Profit before income tax WA 1582 i 21,968
Income tax expense FRTsRB % (13,168)
Profit for the year AR 8,800
Other segment information Jefb ¥R
Depreciation on property, plant and HEN - YET T

equipment (254) (222) (49) (2,038) (354) (5,641) (8,558)
Fair value gains on investment BEMEZ A LEBRAFE

properties, net 41,198 - - - - - 41,198
Additions to RE

~ Property, plant and equipment BN G - 988 33,080 5,074 2,381 615 4,138

~ Investment properties —REE 1,462 - - - - - 1,462

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 fﬁ;ﬁ 1 41



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 W B oy iR AR
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) B E R &)
4 customers (year ended 31 March 2020: 3) contributed more MEER (B2 _FHE-H
than 10% revenue of the Group. =t —HILEE  Z4) A%

B R 10% 35

2021 2020
SRR DB CRAR

Property Property

investment investment

segment segment

WRBESI VERESH

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#L T

Customer A BEA 6,754 9,401
Customer B % B 1,997 1,950
Customer C EFC 1,926 1,881
Customer D %FD 1,389 N/AANE H
Total sk 12,066 13,232

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 4 2 Annual Report 2020/2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — % ——1F = H = —HILFF /&

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5  Wedi By o i &Rk )
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) miBE R )
The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as R-BZER B ZFRIE-H
at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: =t —H A& g E g2
o HRE E K BLEAE
Comprehensive
healthcare
Financial ~ planning and
Property Property Hotel consultancy  management
investment  development operations service services Unallocated Total
SWEE ORREHRN
LUES LIS iR s AN RaREH it
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T T T T T

At 31 March 2021 REBHZAEH

Segment assets NEE 1,997,015 1,292,796 332,311 1,096 256 8,232 3,631,706
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESED 110 825 - 47 20 51 1,053
Total assets A 1,997,125 1,293,621 332,311 1,143 276 8,283 3,632,759
Segment liabilices st (430,670) (942,599) (206,912) (484) (1,798) (7,297)  (1,679,760)
Total liabilities AR (430,670) (942,599) (206,912) (484) (1,798) 97,297 (1,679,760)
At31 March 2020 RZBEZZE=A=1—H

Segment assets PHEE 1,925,661 1,074,783 235,928 4,188 2,116 31,597 3,274,273

Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEN 49 81 - 671 438 262 1,501

Total assets PRI 1,925,710 1,074,864 235,928 4,859 2,554 31,859 3,075,774

Segment liabilities AEE (428,857) (714,992) (156,950) (3,644) (2,984) (66,286) (1,373,713)
Total liabilities AR (428,857) (714,992) (156,950) (3,644) (2,984) (6,286) (1,373,713)

RERUER A7 L3
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 43
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The

Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020

and non-current assets other than financial instruments, deposit

paid for corporate assets and deferred income tax assets as at 31

March 2021 and 2020 based on geographical area are as follows:

144

5 Wedd B i E R @

(b) 4 FRE R ()

AEEABTE R PRI EER-
ABEBE B R E
ZEZHZ+—HIELEERTE

#5r 2 Weas DURR =% =

— 4R

SECEF=H=t—HigtE
HoZ2EREEE (R TAE B
5 4 5 B & % B OB IE PG B

HERID IR
2021 2020
SRR B CRE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt T#IT
Revenue 1~

PRC H [ 13,866 14,914

Non-current assets JEFHRBEE
Hong Kong B 6,721 6,144
PRC ] 2,279,373 2,109,829
2,286,094 2,115,973

Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the

customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on

where the assets are located.

Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

6 Itk OEHD B AT

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

2021 2020
TR AR BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L TH#IT
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, BV R s 2
plant and equipment ‘A (EHE) 146 (6)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B B B8 8 R 2 5 4R (249) -
Impairment loss on other properties leased EE AR HEA S 2
for own use IR s 1E (7,656) -
Others HAth = 37
(7,759) 31

STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)).

7 RERA

T R R R B s

EREFZME (EE13@) °

2021 2020

SR ME CSE TR

HK$’000 HKS$’000

T 0 T#IT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits it B A HA I B 48 13,066 13,106
Contributions to defined contribution plans R T # 3 641 657
13,707 13,763

All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who
are PRC citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted
in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare benefits,
which are organised and administrated by the government authorities.
According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes on
a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and

social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as

incurred.

SIVEEEH

Bl BRER R A B A )
2020/2021 4F$

A7 AE R Y B 8 R 9 I A TR R
PR RZEBHEZ R P BT
{5 A & OrBa s &l o 5% 55 Gt i BOR
PRSI R B AR RIS R
95 e FLAth 4 M o o BEURH e R 51 > A 5 [
5 H MR B & 28 T H o b 5
e At & R A B 1 H R (R A
T ERR) 1wt #E H 2z R0 2 A R
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET

8 WABE A A

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T# L T#IT
Interest expense: FIEBHZ ¢
Amortisation of other payables A 8 A~ R 2 R S 2 (303) (335)
Interest on entrusted loan Bt EHRZH R (38,364) (37,566)
Interest on bond payable JEA {527 2 ) & (6,702) (6,653)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZFE (283) (780)
Interest on contract liabilities BHEBEZHE (7,261) (3,788)
(52,913) (49,122)
Less: Capitalised interest B EARCZFE 52,327 48,007
Finance costs 55 A (586) (1,115)
Interest income: FIBUWA -
Bank interest income RAT AL WA 40 185
Finance income [2E7:1 9N 40 185
Net finance costs J0F 5 A {3 AR (546) (930)

9 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Loss)/profit before income tax for the year is arrived at after charging:

9 RRATHBLI OB R) i A
A4 BRF 4 RLAT W5 45 B R £ 47

B -
2021 2020
SR BB
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T#IT
Auditor’s remuneration A% BRI <2 1,350 1,350

146
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10 RS Ht (%) B¢
The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the consolidated GEEmERERAC KR) kkz
statement of comprehensive income represents: MIES RS ©
2021 2020
TR BB
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Fib
Current tax H A IE
PRC H
— Current year — ARAEE 2,384 2,790
Under provision in prior years LA 4 FE #4412 = 78
2,384 2,868
Deferred taxation RIAEFIIE (19,005) 10,300
Written off of deferred income tax assets AR IE TS A i B 798 -
(15,823) 13,168
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs from the A [ BR TS R AT (B4R A 2 #
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate TH B 8 R AR B A ) Z SR B Z N
applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: R R B 2 R MRAEA U R 2=
B
2021 2020
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTISRLAT (B 48) i Al (121,705) 21,968

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 2 70 R 4% A 1545 i E T 35

(losses)/profits in the respective jurisdictions (B518) /A 2 & Hh A %
At 52 LA (29,032) 7,144
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ARAT 0B =2 2 F Ve 2 6,993 258
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BB A ZBIEE & (23) (16)
Under provision in prior years DA 4 FE #4412 = 78
Deferred tax assets not recognised A w8 2 2R A F I & 5,441 5,704
Written off of previously recognised deferred Z i R 2 AR A T A A
income tax assets & i 3H 798 —
Income tax (credit)/expense FiiS R () B¢ (15,823) 13,168

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 4 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — 2% — — = H = —HIFFEE

10

11

12

148

A H

RAT5 ¥R RN EE @

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(Continued)

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year as
the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2020: Nil). Provision
for China corporate income tax is calculated based on the statutory
tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the assessable income of each of the

Group’s PRC entities.

(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (losses)/earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing

10 38 (JER) B 5 @

11

BHRAERZBERABRR216.5% (=&
TUBAE 1 16.5%) o HHR A R [E 4 Nl
FERRRA (T B4 ) 0 R
AR AE JBE NI 9 S50 A 0 ORI A5 A 1 L4 4 o
HH R 1 2 T A5 A T AR A R
Hh B B 2 SRR A $5 10 R % 25%
(BB 25%) 5HH -

B OB 1R)  # A
@ BRI A B B

the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by TR R AR AT %*j’*ﬁ}\ﬂ%{ﬂj
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during (5 ) /WA BRI C 317 % 7d
the year. I Z IR Y st 3B o
2021 2020
e T =
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AN FIHEA NEMSERN
owners of the Company, HK$'000 (E48) /Wi > T (105,243) 9,379
Weighted average number of ordinary LB AT ¥ 20 B IR~ 19 8
shares in issue 3,430,000,000 3,430,000,000

KRR AR B A

Basic (losses)/earnings per ordinary share,

HK cent(s)

(b) The calculation of diluted (losses)/earnings per ordinary share
is based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares used, which is the same for calculating basic (losses)/
earnings per ordinary share above, as the Company did not have
any dilutive potential ordinary shares for the two years ended 31

March 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors do not recommend payment of final dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

(es48) /A > Al

(3.07) 0.27

(b) 5 W% Al i 2 i (s 48D 2 A
ZAt BT IR A F A N B AL 4R
W (s 48) /s Rl R st 3B SRR
R 2 A (RS H8) 7 AR e
JH 2z A ) 3t 228 s o e 1 1 B 2 AR
B REARAK AR ERE F
SR B OBE S =
FI L 79 118 4 J5E 7 S ] 7 75 8

12 BB

HAEGAERRERE T 4=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

}brmcyzrdukd3lﬂknﬁ2021éﬁ%igggij‘*ﬁ257?;:7p HiLEE

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 o5 2 A B Ak
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () HERBEHITBANBZM
&
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set HRHRE R RSITERN B Z 5N
out below: R
For the year ended 31 March 2021: B2~ -H=+—HIik
AENE :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

B AALDES CRRBEAR AR A ) M}Eﬂ%ﬂmﬁﬂﬁﬁkﬁl&imﬁ

Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with

the management of
Employer’s the affairs of the
contribution to Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertakin Total
PN
AR 7
SRR A 85 2
BICEAAZ SRR T A
¥ K & %k 1784 F W
HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Executive directors Wi
Hung Man AR 1,500 - 14 - 1,514
Li Yong Jun BKE 600 - - - 600
Liu Hong Shen AR 600 - - - 600
Meng Jin Long hEH 400 344 2 - 746
Independent non-executive BLE AT
directors
Long Tao (a) () 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua FEB 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang W 200 - - - 200
Wong Siu Hung, Patrick (b) D () 17 - - - 17
3,717 344 16 - 4,077

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 4 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020:

13 #3928 A By Bl 3 )

@) HFERBRHITBNBZMN

& @)
WMEZ-ZF=A=1+—HI:
FRE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

=BT DUE S R A 2wl 2 ) & e (LI C R 2 P 2

Employer’s
contribution to
retirement benefit

Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management of
the affairs of

the Company

or its subsidiary

Name Fees Salaries scheme ) undertaking Total
it
HARERAL D
o HHEARREY
\ O RERNZ SRR LR
4 s e {8 3 it JE ez & i
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive directors WiTE S
Hung Man AR 1,500 - 19 - 1,519
Li Yong Jun K 600 - - - 600
Liu Hong Shen FIERTS 600 - - - 600
Meng Jin Long FrEad 483 269 - 754
Independent non-executive B IETES
directors
Long Tao MR 200 - - - 200
Ren Guo Hua kS 200 - - - 200
Chen Fang Wi 200 - - - 200
3,783 269 21 - 4,073
Notes: Bt 5T
(a) Mr. Long Tao has resigned as an Independent Non-executive (@ FEFEEENR - __—4HNAH

Director of the Company on 30 April 2021.

(b)  Mr. Wong Siu Hung, Patrick was appointed as an Independent

Non-executive Director of the Company on 3 March 2021.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

13 o1 4 2 6 A B Fll k. )

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2021, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2020:

Nil).

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

WY R R TN B Z M
EAC )

ARFRITEEIARRFA &
EATBON B e R > B R A
o % S5 AT R R AT BN B 26
i o

REE_ZEZ—F=H=+—H
bR JE 0 A 2% ] S 4 ) £ ] 3 R
S AT <2 > 1 2 2055 10 S5
NS B2 I s R A 5 [ I 2 % i
B 1 2y I 1 (2 A
i) -

9 2 5%k D I 4 )
RBE-E - —F=A=1—H
Ak 4 B A9 0 S BT A
HUAE A 48 R IR A (% %
) o

A YO = 5 i 1) 5 —
Ji X 2 AN
RBE_F-4#=A=+—H
1k 4 JEE 7 B 0 0
MR 5 1 4 55 = 77 5 A AR (-
FBAE ) 0

GLEE AR £ 3 ¢ S
il 2 YA I e WL 5% 5 v S
iz TERE 2552 3 N Z B0
RSk B ML 22 5 2 B0kt
Mo =A==+ 0
08 DL B2 R 2 0
1 B B M B 2 R
22 B MR H A% 5
TP (CE B ) o

Bl BRER R A B A )
2020/2021 4F$
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

13 #3928 A By Bl 3 )

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party

and in which a director of the Group had a

material interest,

whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

(f) Five highest paid individuals

()

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 comprise 3 directors

and 2 employees (2020: comprise 3 directors and 2 employees).

The details of the emoluments payable to the 2

2) during the year are presented below:

employees (2020:

HHIRZ S~ RS EIh
Z HOKHE

7 5 0 0 R A £ [ S B ST S R
RE G~ G A H > R4 H
KRG~ e & 8 A R [
HE R A ERRER H
REBEEZZE_Z—F=HA=+—H
1b 4 R A A5 R s AR P A AT I 47
AR (B ZLE ) -

hAEEH N L
HEZE-_—-H="H=+—H
WL REE A A RS H AL
B =HEARWHER (ZF
ZEE A=A HEERWAR
B) o ENEMN WA (CE
i) BB 2l s 250
T

2021 2020
SRR B CORAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T L T#IT

Salaries and other short-term 4 B HoAth 55 1 g B A8 A
employee benefits 1,379 1,787
Pension costs — defined contribution plan ARAR S AR — 2 RE A K E 30 38
1,409 1,825

Number of individuals

A

2021 2020
S et L

Emoluments band

HK$1 - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 5 2 Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 V3E ~ W7 B e
Computer, Other
office Construction properties
Furniture equipment Leaschold Motor in progress leased for
and fixtures  and machinery  improvement vehicles (note) own use Total
- A ERIR fie A
RREE MRS LN it (Whk)  Jefeith A
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T Tt T T#T Tt T T#T

Year ended 31 March 2020 BEZZZBE S HILEE
Opening net hook amount AR R 126 2,524 400 698 167,832 13,390 184,970
Currency translation differences AN R (11) (163) - (33) (11,899) (217) (12,319)
Additions WA 157 115 - 600 34,062 7,204 42,138
Disposal i - - - (298) - - (298)
Lease modification HE B - - - - - (1,943) (1,943)
Charge for the year EREX (42) (200) (200) (231) - (7,879) (8,558)
Closing net book amount SEAR MR P 230 2,070 200 736 189,999 10,555 203,990
As at 31 March 2020 REZEZZEZN=1—H
Cost A 1,527 4241 1,812 1,845 189,999 18,372 217,796
Accumulated depreciation LR (1,297) (1971) (1,612) (1,109) - (7.817) (13,800)
230 2,270 200 736 189,999 10,555 203,990
Year ended 31 March 2021 BEZE =R
Opening net book amount R IFE 230 2,270 200 736 189,999 10,555 203,990
Currency translation differences MBI 21 176 - 1 18,097 129 18,434
Additions e 19 156 - - 75,187 2,439 77,801
Lease modification HEE% - - - - - 10,221 10,221
Disposal of subsidiaries A A - - = = = (1,052) (1,052)
Charge for the year AERE (53) (263) (200) (228) - (7,445) (8,189)
Impairment loss Wl E - - - - - (7,656) (7,656)
Closing net book amount SEAR WG # 217 2,339 - 519 283,283 7,191 293,549
As at 31 March 2021 REZBEZAZ—H
Cost A 1572 4,665 1,573 1,074 283,283 16,453 308,620
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 257 R4 (1,355) (2,326) (1,573) (555) S (9,262) (15,071)
217 2,339 - 519 283,283 7,191 293,549
Note: As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold feE : R =2 =H=+—H /=&
land defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying 2 A8 P RE A A AH B L ot RE SR Y
amount of construction in progress of approximately HK$67,569,000 HRIAI{E £967,569,000¥ T (ZF %
(2020:HK$62,382,000). R 162,382,000 ) U A (ELEHE
TREZHREEA

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 fﬁ;ﬁ 1 5 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 $RE PR
2021 2020
SR CETZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T#IT
At beginning of year TAE] 1,911,983 2,002,606
Addition NE - 1,462
Fair value (losses)/gains, net NOPE (E48) ZR) (76,021) 41,198
Exchange difference [fE 3 72 A 156,583 (133,283)
At end of year RAER 1,992,545 1,911,983
The Group’s property interests are held to earn rental income or for A8 [ B A DU BUR 42 I A 511 3 AR
capital appreciation are measured using the fair value model. WAE 2 P ERE R T B A T BB
i o
Amount recognised in profit or loss for investment Tt w2 45 2k ) 152 0 P 5 G2
properties
2021 2020
SR ME CSE TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T#IT
Rental income Ha A 12,066 14,588
Direct operating expenses from properties that RKEEEHEWRAZER
generated rental income HEEEM (1,276) (1,498)

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 5 4 Annual Report 2020/2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Rnﬁqavmiﬂﬁh%mﬁﬂ%léﬁ%:ﬁvi?gﬂfigfffhgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁg

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15 B EE @)

Investment properties Relationship of
held by the Group in the Significant ~ unobservable 2021 2020
consolidated statement of Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs for Amount Amount
financial position hierarchy technique input(s) fair value HKS$°000 HK$’000
AFAiS
Al g
BRA B HHZ DB CRCRE
S BRI kAR HHZ  BARUZ it &H
Fikifi 2 8 ¥ % AR CE Tt WAZY W% Tk T
Property in Yingkou (located at ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of The higher 99,710 92,056
Zhuoyue Building, Kunlun the comparable market price,
Main Street West, Bayuquan properties and the higher
District, Yingkou City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Liaoning Province, the PRC) the conditions

and locations
of the subject

properties

BOWEMRPBERYE  H=8 A LB AE LR i 53 R A
RO A EE Z iR L
EE NG SONTY) WS AFEES

DUUES
M ZikH
fefii &

Property in Zhongshan (located ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of ~ The higher the 1,822,695 1,755,936
at Daxing Hao Yuan, No. 69 the comparable market price,
Zhongshan Third Road, East properties and the higher
District, Zhongshan City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Guangdong Province, the the conditions
PRC) and locations

of the subject
properties

Rk (RRPEERE =8 BB A E LB TS {EH%
RO T SR L = B 69 3E Z iR i
R0 WFHAE  ATEES

DUR W3
MEZRK
-3 IA

Property in Jinggangshan Level 3 Direct comparison method Market price of ~ The higher the 70,140 63,991
(located at No. 1 Lan Hua the comparable market price,
Ping Road, Ciping Town, properties and the higher
Jinggangshan City, Jian City, adjust to reflect the fair value
Jiangxi Province, the PRC) the conditions

and locations
of the subject

properties
FRILPE (R HETIPGE 3 =4 6 e LGSk i35 LA
G T L T S Z s ks B
e P 15) g AFHES

UES

MEZRR

PS04

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 5 5
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been generally derived

156

using the sales comparison approach. Selling prices of comparable

properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key

attributes such as property size and quality. The most significant input

into this valuation approach is price per square meter.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

The fair value measurement information for the investment properties

in accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2021 is set out below.

(a)

(b)

Valuation basis

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the investment
properties located in cities of Zhongshan, Yingkou and
Jinggangshan have been arrived on the basis of valuation carried
out on that date by independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group. The valuation of Zhongshan, Yingkou
and Jinggangshan was arrived at by reference to market evidence

of transaction prices for similar properties at similar location.

Leasing arrangements

As at 31 March 2021, the investment properties located in
Yingkou and Jinggangshan (2020: Yingkou, Jinggangshan and
Zhongshan), PRC are leased to tenants under long-term operating

leases with rentals payable annually.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

16 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 16 ¥ 23 P wE A HoAth % 1w Wy
Y Sl <52
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE i Z & Rl
INCOME
2021 2020
—RoE o
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Fib
Unlisted investment JELETHHE
— Hong Kong equity securities, at fair value (note) —¥%/AF{EFIIRZ
B AT 7 (M 5E) = 1,765
Note: BFFEE -
The unlisted Hong Kong equity securities represented the investment in 5.96% ZHIEETZ2BFBRAEBEFHE KRB
(2020: 5.96%) equity interest of a private entity established in Hong Kong. WAL RANE RS 96% (= ZF4 .
The fair value loss of HK$1,765,000 (2020: HK$935,000) is recognised as 5.96% ) X AR RERR AR E - INER A FE
other comprehensive expenses and is included in fair value through other 41,765,000 70 (2 . F4F £ 935,0000
comprehensive income reserve of the Group under HKFRS 9 during the JC) L R A A 4 1 BH 57 0 Sl AR AR A W A
year. The fair value of the unlisted equity securities as at 31 March 2021 was 1535 B HI S 0 5% 5 A AS B8 B 8 B s A
measured using valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs as set At 2 v W A 2 R A o R R
out in Note 3.3. =A==+t —H FELHRATHZ

ONFAEER B aE3. 3 2t 9 B A B R R] B
SR W A B (Bl o

17 LEASE LIABILITIES 17 HE £
The Group entered into a number of lease agreements for the use of A S5 [ 5 45 P 3 0 e v R T N P
office premises in Hong Kong and the PRC, with lease terms of 1 to 3 I ZEMEN R HEHA -2 =
years. The net book value of the Group’s lease liabilities was as follows: A o ACHE [E Y FH & A I IR T i E
T

2021 2020

SR CDE R

HK$’000 HK$’000

T Fib

As at 1 April JRMH—H 11,022 13,390

Addition WHE 2,439 7,204

Lease payments FHE A 7K (7,770) (8,157)

Interest expenses FILE B X 283 780

Lease modification HEBK 9,886 (1,943)

Disposal of subsidiaries H A B e 8 ED (1,114) -

Exchange difference [ 12 72 4R 139 (252)

As at 31 March BR=H=+—H 14,885 11,022

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 5 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

17 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

158

17 8 A
SR AL (3 I B

Qe Sl o Minimum lease
As at 31 March 2021 ZH=+—H payments Interest  Present value
J5e AL 5 49 3 A B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#IT T#T T#L
Not later than one year AN — 5,740 (605) 5,135
Later than one year and not later — 4 DL b B A 7 7 AF
than two years 5,241 (365) 4,876
Later than two years and not later WA DL EOR 8 2 A
than five years 5,004 (130) 4,874
15,985 (1,100) 14,885
AT ZE TR Minimum lease
As at 31 March 2020 =H=+—H payments Interest Present value
AR S AT K 2 BiE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
Tl Tl Tl
Not later than one year R e 3 — A 8,666 (420) 8,246
Later than one year and not later —4E DL b AB R 68 ¥ R A
than two years 2,375 (105) 2,270
Later than two years and not later A DA b (B R 8 i 1 4F
than five years 512 (6) 506
11,553 (531) 11,022
2021 2020
SRR BRI
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# L T
Current i 5,135 8,246
Non-current FEIRE 9,750 2,776
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 14,885 11,022

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18 R¥ B herh ok
FOR SALE
HK$’000
T
As at 1 April 2019 AE—NAENH—H 758,763
Additions NE 162,190
Exchange difference FEE §3 72 %8 (53,977)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 MRE-BZEF=H=1T—HK
—EZFENH—H 866,976
Additions wE 127,001
Exchange difference P 5 72 %8 75,468
As at 31 March 2021 REFEZAE=ZH=1—H 1,069,445
Notes: B &E
(a) The amount of properties under development for sale and expected to () TEFHRER i — 4 DS Wm0 1 8 4
be recovered after more than one year is HK$1,069,445,000 (2020: JE R 2 R £1,069,445,0009 7T (Z
HK$866,976,000). % EAE 1 866,976,0009 1)
(b)  Properties under development for sale are situated on leasehold land (b) FFEHFRPYEMR PR ZHE
located in the PRC. e
(c)  As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of interests in leaschold land (0 MRIOZB-—H=ZA=Z+—H Hes
defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying amount of {5 ) R 5 ) FHL S i RE 2 Y R
properties under development for sale of approximately HK$307,814,000 {E#9307,814,000% 0 (% AR ©
(2020: HK$284,184,000). 284,184,000 70) B & 1E 58 /e
TSk Z AREIELA ©

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 5 9



e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R M EE @

RyﬁqaumdﬂﬁU%mﬁﬂﬂléﬁf:igt?éﬁﬁf}iffhéﬁﬂfﬁﬂg

19

160

SUBSIDIARIES

19 KitJg 2y W)
RoBo == H2 BB

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

J& A F A ERSIAE

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities held by the Group
i3 2V CEfi A/ A
B 2 B ik ¥ A B i i 5 0 ¢ B
4 1 Y iy ER-ES Y T:E2 8] R 0 2 A (%)
Crown Entertainment Corporation Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000,000 ordinary shares of *100%
SRR A AT Limited liability company TE I B i A T US$1 each
i A R 1,000,000/
SRR {E 1550 2 ¥
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
SRR PR A AT Limited liability company TEEER AR 10,0003 7T
BBARAH
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 10,000 ordinary shares of *100%
SRR A R AT Limited liability company =4 THEva- el US$1 each
i B A R ] 10,000/
SRHTHRESTPALS 1
Crown Global Opportunity Investment Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited Limited liability company TE 8 BE s #  HE US$1 cach
R EREERE AR T P A PR 2 1,000
SR NRES P &l
Crown International Investment Corp. Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 1,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company 7 I P i 15 US$1 each
R AHRAF 1,0001%
BRI 1T W AR
Crown International Resort Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
ERUMEEAR AT Limited liability company TR BRARR 10,0007 7T
HiEARAH
Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited Hong Kong Provision of HK$10,000 100%
(Formerly known as Limited liability company administration service 10,0007 7T
Crown Land Corp. Limited) BHEARAR in Hong Kong
BRREREM AR R TR BTN
(4 S K S A PR 2 )
Crown Tianhe Resources Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
EERMEFEARAT Limited liability company TER R H TR 10,0007 7T
BBARRH
Grandlife Healthcare Group Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$500,000 51%
FREHEEEEARAR Limited liability company TER R AT 500,000 7T
BBARLH

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continucd) 19 Bt 23 bl )

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued

establishment and

Proportion of

Principal activities and share capital/registered capital ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities held by the Group
i3 2V [ £if ' V4 AR
3 2 il I A B i i 5 0 ¢ b
# i iy ER-E3 Y T:E2E ] R O 2 A (%)
Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 380,000 ordinary shares of *51%
Limited liability company TE I8 P i 15 S 1 Y US$1 each
i A R ] 380,000/
(ST B W 1
Grandlife Capital Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
ERAZEARAT Limited liability company TER B E TR 10,0003 7T
BBARH
Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$500,000 100%
FRBEREPER AR AT Limited liability company TER B AR 500,000 7T
BBARLH
Jumbo China Investment Group Ltd Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 2,000,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company e T PR AR A T L US$1 each
Vi A R 2,000,000/
SLTHRESTAL S 1
Jumbo China Investment Ltd Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
HEREARAT Limited liability company TER R E TR 10,000 7T
BEARAH
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel Management PRC Property investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Corporation Limited. © Wholly foreign-owned TEH B Y HK$25,600,000
PR A2 4 CB 1) 0 B B PR v ] 2 enterprise At A
HR 2 M (R 25,600,0004 1
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan Shi) PRC Wholly foreign- Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Limited 2 owned enterprise FEP B E s RMB50,000,000
DIRE 2 R 1 CGHF B i) A PR 2 )~ R 2 A L A
AR M50,000,0007¢
World Opal Investment Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
HRBEEARAT Limited liability company TERERE TR 10,000 7T
BBARRH
Zhongshan Hualian Industrial PRC Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Development Corporation Limited © Wholly foreign-owned TE B E Y HK$50,000,000
HLL I ECE R B A PR AR enterprise AL E A
R 2 AR 50,000,000 7C
% (R I B S BRI TR A ) PRC Provision of consultancy service Registered capital of 51%
Wholly foreign-owned for set up of comprehensive RMB100,000,000
enterprise health-care business EAlEN
R 2 AN A R BORE R R B B S AR 100,000,0007C
B SRR SR A R A )

2020/2021 4F$
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

IFF

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F

162

= s

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

19 Bt 2 m) can

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Proportion of
ordinary shares

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of

their Chinese names.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021

kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities held by the Group
i3 2V [ £if 2 V4 A
B3 2 B ik ¥ A B i £ 5 0 ¢ B
Y iy ER-ES Y T:E2 8] R 0 2 A (%)
BIE AR MRS () ARAR PRC Provision of consultancy service Registered capital of 51%
Wholly foreign-owned for set up of comprehensive RMB15,000,000
enterprise health-care business L E A
el B PN e SR SR P AR H15,000,0007C
AL B KPR AR AR PRC Investment holding in PRC Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign-owned TEH B TR RMB180,000,000
enterprise At A
R 2 2 A £ ARMH180,000,0007
Jek it 0 B K LR AT IR A ) PRC Hotel and property investment Registered capital of 100%
Wholly foreign—owned in PRC RMB425,620,000
enterprise TErP BB B Y EAEN
B R E M R E AR H425,620,0007T
FEE RS () ARAR PRC Provision of consultancy service Registered capital of 70%
Partially Chinese-owned for set up of comprehensive RMB10,000,000
and foreign-owned health-care business FEAE A
enterprise SRAL A RS AR 10,000,0007C
HBIIM G R & DU B AR MR B
RERNEEH
Shares held directly by the Company. Wty AR A R B A o

% 55 0N T M DE SO AL R o 1 S A4 R A
R H PTG 2 Bl



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

20 oAt WK ~ FRAT kR

Be 48 &

2021 2020
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# T TH#IT

Non-current e B
Rental deposits &Y ¥ & 1,251 699
1,251 699

Current g

Other receivables At 8 Wi T 8,584 9,828
Prepayments and deposits (note) TR 3R E R ¥ (B EE) 252,694 256,455
261,278 266,283
262,529 266,982

Note:

Prepayments and deposits mainly included prepayments in the amount of
approximately HK$251,347,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000) (2020:
HK$232,052,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000)) made by the Group

which represents prepayments for procuring the acquisition of a potential

property development project in the City of Weihai, PRC. The amounts will be

transferred to properties under development for sale when the Group obtains

contractual usage rights of the relevant lands and properties.

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES

21

Trade receivables generally are paid in arrear at the beginning of each

rental year.

FRFRE <

TE AT R TE R ¥ B 2 2 RS R 4 18 R
FRIEKI251,347,0003 70 (F & R N R
212,502,0007%) (=& ZZ4E 1 232,052,000
A E R N R 1212,502,0007T) & R
R 5 WS i R 3 1) — TEL VB LE ) 3 5 R O
H 0 T8 A FR0E o & A 45 8 B A5 A B 3
P A A8 RE R 5% S RRE G i R
PR

HEW 2 5 Bk

OB WA B 2 B ok — PR 4 18 AHL 5 4 JE 2
RIS -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#L T#T

Trade receivables JE U B 5 Rk 689 9,626
Bl BRER R A B A )
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2020/2021 4F$



sl
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

22

164

21 HEWCE 5 MR

There is no specific credit term granted to customers. Further details

on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in Note 3.1(a). The ageing analysis of net trade

receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at end of the reporting

period is as follows:

AEEIREEERNIZ TR A
Io#] A% 5 98] 15 50 IBOORE e HEE WA B 5 B ok
A A B L B 2 A — 20 O RO B
3.1(a) o 2 %% 52 F YT 7 ¥ 75 910K JEE M
B 5 MR B Z R T TR

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T# T T#IT

1 to 3 months 15238 H 376 9,626
4 to 6 months 4561 H 313 -
689 9,626

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22 3z RIS FH BT &5 B B Bl

ERBLEFED

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR Fir

Bank balances RATEEER 1,039 1,429
Cash on hand F U 4 14 72
Cash and cash equivalents HerHSZEEY 1,053 1,501
Restricted bank balances 32 B il FH #R 17 45 BR 12,949 12,191

As at 31 March 2021, cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$13,941,000 (2020: HK$12,997,000) respectively are denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely

convertible currency in the international market. The conversion of

RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC

is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated

by the government of the PRC.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23 LAt B 45F K o e JE it £ 4

2021 2020
B4 CEoEE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#HT
Non-current FEETHA
Leasehold improvements payable FH 5 0 e A R IE 5,256 5,623
5,256 5,623
Current R
Construction and development cost payables JEE AT St S e % J AR 350,810 197,845
Contract liabilities (note) EHaE e 131,855 102,805
Interest payables JEEAS S 55,872 10,077
Others HAth 41,424 45,956
579,961 3_5_6_,§8_3_ B
585,217 362,306
Note: B 5E
The contract liabilities was arising from pre-sales of properties of Weihai BR AR R E H Y2 T R R R A
project and provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and management SR S PRI i A s FE A AR
services. The contract liabilities represents receipt of advance payments from FBE Z - F=H=1T—HILFEH
pre-sales of properties amounting to HK$20,324,000 during the year ended 31 V) 3K THIGKIE 20,324,000 (-2 %
March 2021 (2020: HK$72,560,000) and receipt of advances from provision £F 1 72,560,0009 1) e 42 1M R M8 5K I 4
of comprehensive healthcare planning and management services amounting to BIR %5 2 THWGKIE 177, 00030 (2 %
HK$177,000(2020: HK$655,000). 4 1 655,000/ 7T) °
= &
24 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 24 JEH AW IERA

The amount due to a director was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

JEE AR — 4% S S SRR 2 S AT S
AT EORIEE -

Bl BRER R A B A )
2020/2021 4F$
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

25

166

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to

settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows:

25 MEGEFi 1S B & A L AL

B A TRE FTHAT RE A Al R BRI AR TH
7 B BV I A2 O £ (e T AR B 0 i AR O
FIT 15760 25 7 B £ i BL K — OB R S A
B A 7] SR 5 e 2 T — T A A R P
Bz PSR A B > HA R g e A
e &5 S ERAEIRF o [0 R AR A T A AR
7 L B (A EL AR o RSN AT

2021 2020

SR DECBE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# T Tt

Deferred income tax assets RAC IS & & - 760
Deferred income tax liabilities AR GE RS A (410,391) (396,987)
(410,391) (396,227)

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Accelerated

depreciation

REE_FE R FRE=R
=t—HILEE GEMBRREERN

R BIEFGREE (AR 24
s LB B4R

BEZ A=t HILEE

Fair value Fair value
change of gain on

investment acquisition of

allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total
O — 1
B¥mE W 2 i 2
o B 45 4t BEEUEH AT ATHERN At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Ac 1 April 2020 REBRENA—H 60 700 (388,350) (8,637) (396,227)
Credited to the consolidated statement B AL A R R
of comprehensive income = - 19,005 - 19,005
Written-off of deferred tax assets WL PR 7 (63) (735) = = (798)
Exchange difference TS 2 H 3 35 (31,691) (718) (32,371)
At 31 March 2021 RZZB-—-F=H=+—H - - (401,036) (9,355) (410,391)

Crown International Corporation Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

25 WEGEFi1S B & A B AL

BE_Z_ZF=-A=+—HILEE

Fair value Fair value
Accelerated change of gain on
depreciation investment acquisition of
allowances Tax losses properties a subsidiary Total
Wt — el
REVE  WELFEZ
kSt Rug®E  ATHEE  ATEEN Hst
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Ac1 April 2019 REZE—NENA—H 64 750 (405,109) (9,188) (413,483)
Charged to the consolidated statement MR B &S 2 R
of comprehensive income - - (10,300) - (10,300)
Exchange difference fE §2 7% 4 (4) (50) 27,059 551 27,556
At31 March 2020 REZEZFEZA=+—H 60 700 (388,350) (8,637) (396,227)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: AR Z B FFASRE AT -
2021 2020
%4 EoEg
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Unutilised tax losses REH Z R IHE 18 54,645 49,419

At 31 March 2021, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$328,128,000 (2020: HK$293,651,000) have
not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilised such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to
HK$322,196,000, (2020: HK$282,282,000) has no expiry date and
certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$5,932,000 (2020:
HK$11,369,000) would expire within five years under the current tax

legislation of the respective jurisdictions.

ATE A=t —H REE
1H49328,128,000 0 (= Z —Z 4 .
293,651,0009% 7T.) [K H 1% v &) H A B s
8 2 T8 R A 5 AS RE TR 0 0 R HilE R
R HE 760 TE B o AR PR AH R A A RE I 2
BUAT R 50 > 6 Jeel 3 H B 2 R R
VB 548 25322,196,000f 7T (8 &
F 1 282,282,000 L) 1M A FLAE N Z|
W28 T AR R IE 5 1H 25,932,000
T (A 1 11,369,00009T) ©

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 6 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

n-F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #¢F — E = H=F—HIFFE

B BHRERMEE @

26 BORROWINGS

168

26 8

2021 2020
TR AR B OBAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# L AR
Entrusted loan (note a) ZitER (Fika) 591,400 546,000
Bonds payable (note b) JEAHE 2 (B 5ED) 50,960 52,503
642,360 598,503

Less: Amount due within one year shown W FERE Az

under current liabilities: HAR—HENEE S8

Entrusted loan ZRtE (591,400) (546,000)
Bonds payable JEE A1 27 (50,960) (14,273)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities BURRIER B &l 2 &8 - 38,230

Notes:

On 9 November 2018, J BB AR E #E AR A A (“Weihai
Runhe”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an entrusted debt investment agreement with Asia Alliance Asset
Lid. (“Asia Alliance Asset”), an independent third
party, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch pursuant to which Weihai
Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of RMB660,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$780,648,000) for a term loan of 3 years, bearing

Management Co.,

interest at 6.6% per annum (“Asia Alliance Asset Loan”). The borrowing
is secured by the pledge of Weihai Runhe construction-in-progress “Real
Estate Registered Certificate” which will be in custody by Harbin Bank
Tianjin Branch. The funding will be used for construction work of
Golden Beach No. 1 Project. The final drawdown amount of this loan was
RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$591,400,000) and the remaining
undrawn facility amount was lapsed. This loan is guaranteed by Mr. Meng
Jin Long, being the legal representative of Weihai Runhe and a director of
the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has not paid certain instalments
of principal and interest payments of the entrusted loan with an
aggregate amount of HK$355,770,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB300,786,000) which was due and payable on 20 March 2020, 20
June 2020, 20 September 2020, 20 December 2020 and 20 March 2021,
and remained overdue as at 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statement. Based on the loan agreement
the lender has the right to demand immediate repayment, and as a result,
the bank has the right to serve a notice and require Weihai Runhe to
repay the entire entrusted loan of principal amount of approximately
HK$591,400,000 (equivalent to RMB500,000,000) as at 31 March 2021,
together with the interest and penalty, immediately.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

26 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 28 November 2018, the Company as issuer and Head & Shoulders
Securities Limited as placing agent, among other parties, entered into
a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company to issue a 7% per
annum bonds (the “Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100 million maturing on the second anniversary of the issue date
of the Bonds at the placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount
of the Bonds (the “Placing”). The purpose of raising this Bonds was

intended to be used for general working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has not paid certain instalments of
principal and interest payments of the bonds with an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$11,030,000 which was due and payable on 14
March 2021 and 22 March 2021 respectively, and remained overdue
as at 31 March 2021. Principal and interest payments of the bond of
HK$9,981,000 was remained overdue up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statement. This bond payable is guaranteed by the

major shareholder of the Company, Ms. Hung Man.

27 SHARE CAPITAL

26 fBH @
Bz : (48)

b RZZ—NE+—HZ+/AH A
A (EABITN) BIf &8 H AR AR
(fE 2 e B AR B B LA 5T 49 )5 5T o7
Be 85 17 5 0 PR IL > AR A FIHE T AT AR
Hrwz @2 (ME5F))  KEHEERS
#5100,000,00035 ¢ TR EF7 3847 H I
2 AR BLE A E R E S
ARERZ100% (THLEE D) o BEATEZFAT
fRTEBE I E AR R — 2

RoB - —E=H=1+—H > A%HEH
MARMER S BR R 4 =H+W
Hy—Z-—=H -+ HEH
MR ==+ — SN
# R A 5H4911,030,0009 7T 1)
HETARMEFEASLHBAMNE -HE
HHEGAMBERREMEZH > A
Be Bl ELFR I A8 %E 79,981,000 7T I &
TN ) E F7 AP 2 R A o o A
B A Al B KR AR B2 L5 1 o

27 A

Share capital

Number of B A
shares HK$’000
JBe 4y ¥ H T#L
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: AT R R ER :
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, B R-JLENA—H -
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 TR OREZ)
Z=t—H - SR RE
WH—H R _F 4
=H=+—H 3,430,000,000 1,979,067
28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 Bl & ifi 7 &k
(a) Notes supporting consolidated statement of cash (a) % Bl BRIk
flows
2021 2020
—F_ A CERTZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T#IT
Cash and cash equivalents comprise Bl R Bl EFHEM B
Bank balances and cash on hand AT BRI FHEBI® 1,053 1,501
Sk SRR B A LA )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #E E T —AFE=H = —HIEE
28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 28 Bl& i m &R @

(b) bl 35 Bh Pl 2 2 E A )

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities HE
Amount
Interest due to
payables Borrowings  Lease liabilities a director Total
JERT—4
HERER R i LINEREL =] At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
(note 23) (note 26) (note 17) (note 24)

(Wik23) (WHik26) (Wik17) (W ik24)

Ac 1 April 2019 KRB NENA—H 1,494 598,046 13,390 - 612,930
Changes from cash flows: BT RS
Proceeds from issue of bonds BT RTFASA0H - 36,045 - - 36,045
Repayment of principal portion of HREAEAE AR,

lease liabilities - - (7,377) - (7,377)
Repayment of interest portion of (R R 5

lease liabilities - - (780) - (780)
Interest paid [SAREDES (31,679) - - - (31,679)
Total changes from financing cash flows: A R B 4 0 R A ) A AR (31,679) 36,045 (8,157) - (3,791)
Other changes: Hfth 5% ) -
Increase in lease liabilities from new leases 3§ VA 5 Hl £ 2 FHl & £ 1% - - 7,204 - 7,204
Lease modification HEBL - - (1,943) - (1,943)
Exchange differences [ $3 74 (945) (38,600) (252) - (39,797)
Finance costs B A 41,207 3,012 780 - 44,999
Total other changes: HAh B 45 40,262 (35,588) 5,789 - 10,463
At31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 REZ-BEZA=Z|—HR

“ECEENA A 10,077 598,503 11,022 - 619,602

Changes from cash flows: B m ) .
Advance from a director AT - = 19,227 19,227
Repayment of bonds 7 - = - (4,500)
Repayment of principal portion of HREMEAEZ AR

lease liabilities - (7,487) - (7,487)
Repayment of interest portion of RS A RS

lease liabilities = (283) - (283)
Interest paid [BARED:N (3,885) - - (3,885)
Total changes from financing 3 F I B4 T SR I A

cash flows: (3,885) (7,770) 19,227 3,072

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2020/2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 28 Bl bt AR a0
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEEE A 2 Al
activities (Continued) W (&)
Amount
Interest due to
payables Borrowings  Lease liabilities a director Total
MR — %4
HE AT HH Higan R a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
(note 23) (note 26) (note 17) (note 24)

(¥k23) (¥ik26) (Wik17) (Hi¥k24)

Other changes: HA D)

Increase in lease liabilities from new leases IR BRI & 2 & A E - - 2,439 - 2,439
Lease modification e BL - - 9,886 - 9,886
Disposal of subsidiaries 8 B A ) - - (1,114) - (1,114)
Exchange differences [ 92 7 7,568 45,403 139 - 53,110
Finance costs SRS 1A 42,112 2,954 283 - 45,349
Total other changes: Hit 84 49,680 48,357 11,633 - 109,670
At 31 March 2021 REFZEZH=tH 55,872 642,360 14,885 19,227 732,344

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 71
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B WARMTEE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — 2% — — = H = —HIFFEE

29 COMMITMENTS 29 7RIE

(a) Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessor

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following minimum lease receivables:

(a)

YR

A5 E L EDR I — B2 H
A

MREB R E RE =N
=t—H AREBEHFETE
#) 2 e AR B O H R

2021 2020

TR B CORAR

HK$°000 HKS$’000

TR Filse

Not later than 1 year A — 3,825 39,464
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years —AEDL FH RGBS AR 3,026 37,851
Later than 2 year and not later than 3 years ZAREDL R AR AR I = AR 2,178 37,414
Later than 3 year and not later than 4 years AR DL AE AN i 2 Y A 2,253 37,532
Later than 4 year and not later than 5 years PO 4R DL | AH A8 7 4 2,253 37,601
Over five years e 3 71 4F 3,868 345,346
17,403 535,208

Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate minimum
lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable operating leases
of its investment properties. Typically, leases are negotiated and

rentals are fixed for lease term of 9-10.5 years (2020: 9-15 years).

(b) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group has capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided in the consolidated

financial statements below in respect of the construction of the

(b)

488 R I AR T AR SR A 1
MHLEY 2 Aol e sl
B 2 A A S I KA R o —
e S AV ASRERG s e 0 FHL B 1
o I ToR10.5 (B %
i 19 154F) o

BA R

REE DR B DBEZR
=t—H > ARBR NG M
B5 ¥ 2% b st i e M) 2 CRT A9 EOR

properties. PR E AR
2021 2020
ot Stk RN S &i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T#HT
Construction of properties e Y/E S 124,895 121,120

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 72 Annual Report 2020/2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

iR e B EwR M EE @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{F — & — AT I e S B e o

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the amount due to a director disclosed in Note 24, the
following transactions were carried out with related parties during the

year.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

30 Bl )5 225
B W 2.4 4 5 0 O F — 4% 6 9 2O
51 45 P9 B IRLIGH 73 2 17 2 2% 5 IR B4
‘FO

B P ol

A PR LA R A P
A9 U 5L 5 A A B L
AR

2021 2020
e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL T#IT
Directors’ fee S 3,717 3,783
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits B Be HoAth 55 W B 18 R 344 269
Pension costs — MPF BARE A -5 AR 16 21
4,077 4,073

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31 HP &

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the following items were used to

secure loan facilities granted to the Group:

(i) Pledge of the construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered
Certificate” held by Weihai Runhe, which represents the hotel
development under construction in progress and the properties
under development for sale as set out in Note 14 and Note 18

respectively.

(ii) Pledge of the entire share capital RMB425,620,000 of Weihai
Runhe.

AR R R DEE A
=+t—H> FIIFEIHRERRT
AR E B E

(i) BRI T R P R DR
"AEEG AW IEIRE D
Sl BB AE BN E 14 B B RE18 9 2 AE
T B R R T B R
e

Gi) E M EETE RN 2R A N RS
425,620,0007C °

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 7 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE F —fF-H=AF—HILFEE

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

32 ALl Z W B5IR DL b fi
P2 dh

COMPANY
2021 2020
= o
Note HK$’°000 HK$’O()£)
Bt 5 T# L T#IT
Assets i
Non-current assets i W) & e
Interests in subsidiaries T 8 2 R 2 R A 1,522,031 1,522,031
1,522,031 1,522,031
Current assets W&
Other receivables, prepayments and JFL Al 8 SRR T
deposits FEAS RO B & 92 270
Amounts due from subsidiaries JVEE WA g 2 R R T 100 22,043
Cash and cash equivalents &R EFHEY 7 9
199 22,322
Total assets =923 -] : 1 1,522,230 1,544,353
Equity k%
Capital and reserves A B il i
Share capital A 1,979,067 1,979,067
Accumulated losses 25T E1E (a) (538,318) (494,256)
Total equity k2 480 1,440,749 1,484,811
Current liabilities b RER S
Other payables and accruals S Atk 88 A5 35 T B M R LI 11,219 6,912
Amount due to a director JEAT— B E R IHE 19,177 -
Borrowings =R 50,959 14,273
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEEAF BfT I8 2 ) K T 126 127
81,481 21,312
Non-current liabilities JE i W) £ i
Borrowings (R = 38,230
Total liabilities s 81,481 59,542
Total equity and liabilities HE 3 B B3 e 4R 1,522,230 1,544,353

ARAZBEAMKRKEFRTGR -F
e VAV = pll =K i B A=l T DN

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 30 June 2021 and was signed on its behalf

TREEHFGHEE
Ms. Hung Man Mr. MENG Jin Long
G N e A Je A
Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
T A HITHEF

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 7 4 Annual Report 2020/2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e TR R @

For the year ended 31 March 2021 e =S A= =
32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32 A2 n) 2 A8k B ik

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE i 52 ) a0
COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) ARn)ZEHEEE)
Accumulated
losses
Ruhis
HK$’000
FiH#IT
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NLHE=H=1+—H (472,436)
Loss for the year FENEE (21,820)
At 31 March 2020 R ZBE=ZHA=+—H (494,256)
Loss for the year HENEBHE (44,062)
At 31 March 2021 BRoB24EZH=1—H (538,318)

SRR AT LS
= 2020/2021 5?5;& 1 75
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Financial Summary

RA 5t 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

A 55 18 R i 20T {1 U O ) 2 B 5 SR A

last five financial periods. AR o
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ZE-tE 2B\ B SECRE SF i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
T T T T Tl
Revenue g 12,024 4,995 5,371 14,914 13,866
Profit/(loss) before income tax R REE NI}
A,/ (k5 48) 123,300 109,610 14,765 21,968 (121,705)
Income tax credit/(expense) REL:
w5,/ (B30 (41,960) (895) (10,974) (13,168) 15,823
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF, (E1E) 81,340 108,715 3,791 8,800 (105,882)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners A2\ F A A EAL
of the Company i/ (E18) 81,179 108,716 3,791 9,379 (105,243)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group
and equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2017,
2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021.

AR %
— L

“BIER

— L ZFE - UE O

52

=

——E=H

=t—HZ&EERME AEME KA NH

A N B RE R AR o

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

SE—-tE ZEB-N\E ZE-WE B ORE DB

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T RV RV Tl Tt

Total assets HEME 1,984,419 2,864,473 3,270,544 3,275,774 3,632,759

Total liabilities B 4 (768,836) (702,044) (1,242,723) (1,373,713)  (1,679,760)

Net assets HETE 1,215,583 2,162,429 2,027,821 1,902,061 1,952,999
Equity attributable to owners . NUNTEiE: Z=PN

of the Company JEAG AR 1,215,430 2,162,269 2,027,821 1,901,146 1,952,782

Non-controlling interests JEFE R 153 160 - 915 217

Total equity i otk 1,215,583 2,162,429 2,027,821 1,902,061 1,952,999

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2020/2021
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